Haringey Council

Special Corporate Committee

MONDAY, 24TH OCTOBER, 2011 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Amin, Gorrie, Griffith, Jenks, Khan, McNamara, Meehan,
Watson, Whyte and Williams
AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE(IF ANY)
To receive any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late report in relation to the item shown
on the agenda. Please note that under the Council’s Constitution — Part 4 Section B
paragraph 17 — this being a special meeting of the Corporate Committee no other
business shall be considered.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, Paragraph
29 of the Council’'s Constitution.

CHILDREN'S CENTRES STAFFING RESTRUCTURE

The Committee to consider proposals for the future delivery of this service. Report to
Follow

CORPORATE ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY (PAGES 1 -40)

The Corporate Committee is responsible for Anti-fraud and Corruption arrangements
as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to provide assurance that the corporate
policy is consistent with relevant professional codes of practice and other best
practice requirements, it is reviewed on a regular basis, with approval for the final
Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy resting with the Corporate Committee.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT -2011/12 QUARTER 2 (PAGES 41 - 76)

To advise the Committee of the work undertaken during the second quarter by the
Internal Audit Service in completing the 2011/12 annual audit plan and reports issued
for outstanding 2010/11 audits, together with the responsive and housing benefit
fraud investigation work, and to provide details of the work undertaken by Council’s
Human Resources business unit in supporting disciplinary action taken across all
departments by respective Council Officers.

UPDATE ON TERMS AND CONDITIONS (PAGES 77 -78)

To update Members on the progress of the review of employment terms and
conditions.

SHARED SERVICES PREFERRED PARTNERSHIP WITH LONDON BOROUGH OF
WALTHAM FOREST - UPDATE REPORT (PAGES 79 - 80)

The report updates members on the preferred partnership with Waltham Forest
Council with particular emphasis on the staffing elements of service delivery.

LONDON LIVING WAGE - POLICY AND HOURLY PAY RATE SUPPLEMENTS
(PAGES 81 - 86)



To ensure that the hourly rate of pay of council employees at the lower end of the
London pay spine remain at a reasonable and fair level of pay for working in London
as determined by the Living Wage Unit on behalf of the Mayor of London for the
Greater London Authority group.

11.  APPOINTMENT OF HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES AND LEAD FINANCIAL
OFFICER (PAGES 87 - 88)

The report proposes a process for the appointment to two posts :Assistant Director of
Finance and Head of Legal Services.

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following items are likely to be subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contains exempt information as defined in Section
100a of the Local Government Act 1972; Para 3 - information relating to the business
or financial affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information).

13. PENSION FUND APPOINTMENT OF PASSIVE FUND MANAGERS

To receive a report on the outcome of the tender process to appoint two passive fund
managers for the Pension Fund. Report to Follow

14. LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT - PENSION FUNDING ISSUE (PAGES 89 -
92)

The Committee to receive an update on the leisure management contract pension
funding issue discussed at the Corporate Committee meeting on the 27 September.

David McNulty Ayshe Simsek

Head of Local Democracy Principal Committee Co-ordinator
and Member Services Level 5

Level 5 River Park House

River Park House 225 High Road

225 High Road Wood Green

Wood Green London N22 8HQ

London N22 8HQ
Tel: 020 8489 2929
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk






Page 1 Agenda ltem 6

Haringey .
Corporate Committee
Report for: Item
24 October 2011 number
Title: Corporate Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy

Report authorised Director of Corporate Resources

by T L2ue % [10/y

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Lead Officer: Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: ALL Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 As part of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) 2006 Code of Practice, and the requirements of the Council’s
Whistle-blowing policy, Haringey Council needs to ensure that there are
appropriate processes in place for the reporting and investigation of
allegations of fraud and corruption.

1.2 The Corporate Committee is responsible for Anti-fraud and Corruption
arrangements as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to provide
assurance that the corporate policy is consistent with relevant professional
codes of practice and other best practice requirements, it is reviewed on a
regular basis, with approval for the final Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy
resting with the Corporate Committee. The corporate strategy was last
presented to members at the Audit Committee in November 2009 for formal
approval.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable

PPage 1 of 4



Page 2

Haringey ... -
3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Corporate Committee reviews and approves the revised Corporate
Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy; together with the appended Fraud
Response Plan, Whistle-blowing Policy, Housing Benefit Anti-fraud
Strategy and Sanctions Policy, and Anti-money Laundering Policy.

4. Other options considered
4.1 Not applicable.
5. Background information

5.1 An Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy provides the framework within which
all employees, Councillors and partnership organisations should operate.
Alongside the anti-fraud strategy, a fraud response plan sets out how
employees, members of the public, Gouncillors and other related parties
can make their concerns known and how the Council will deal with any
allegations made.

5 3 The Council is committed to reducing the potential for fraud and corruption
to the lowest possible level. The updated Anti-fraud and Corruption
Strategy and related appendices, attached as an annex to this report, are
key documents in informing people of the Council’s position on fraud and
corruption and its intention to deal with any issues in a firm, but responsibie
way.

6. Comments of the Chief Fihancial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
Investigations into allegations of fraud and corruption are undertaken using
existing available resources within Audit and Risk Management and
relevant service departments, where applicable. The costs are contained
within revenue budgets which are monitored on a monthly basis.

6.2 The risks of fraud and any associated potential financial losses are
identified and recorded in the Council’s corporate risk register. Ensuring
that the Council has dedicated fraud prevention and investigation resources
assists in both reducing the risk of financial losses from occurring and in
the recovery of resources from identified frauds.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 The Acting Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of
this report, and comments as follows.

Page 2 of 4



Page 3

Haringey ... ¢

7.2 In view of the fact that the various strategies reported on continue to follow
industry best practice, coupled with the fact that any amendments to those
strategies, in the main, reflect operational changes, means that there are no
direct legal implications arising out of the report.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 This report outlines how the Council deals with allegations of fraud and
corruption across all areas of the Council, which have an impact on various
parts of the community. Improvements in managing risks and controls and
reducing the opportunity for fraud will therefore improve services the
Council provides to all sections of the community.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1 Not applicable.
10.Policy Implications

10.1 There are no direct implications for the Council’s existing policies,
priorities and strategies. However, reducing the opportunity for fraud to
take place in the first place, and taking appropriate action to detect and
investigate identified fraud will assist the Council to use its available
resources more effectively.

11.Use of Appendices
11.1 Annex 1 - Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy
12.The Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy

12.1 The Council’s Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy gives guidance to
relevant individuals, employees, Councillors, members of the public and
organisations working in partnership with the Council, on what the Council
wants to know about in relation to fraud and corruption, what people
should do if they suspect fraud and corruption and how the Council will
deal with any allegations made.

12.2 The Council’s Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy is published on the
Haringey website and intranet site, together with details of how to report
Suspected cases of fraud and corruption. Annual reminders to all staff on
how to report suspected cases of fraud and corruption, together with
contact details, are provided in staff newsletters, and the corporate Team
Brief publication. This approach ensures that all staff are made aware of the
Council’s expectations and processes in relation to fraud and how to report

Page 3 of 4



Page 4

Haringey

it. Publicity on the Council’s anti-fraud strategy is also included in the
annual Pensions Newsletter, the ‘Haringey People’ publication and Homes
for Haringey’s ‘Home Zone’ publication on a regular basis.

12.3 The Council’s Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy follows CIPFA’s best
practice model. The Council’s Whistle-blowing policy conforms to the best
practice guidance from Public Concern at Work, the independent charitable
organisation which advises on whistle-blowing and governance matters.

12 4 The anti-fraud and corruption strategy is reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure that any changes to best practice or relevant codes of practice are
incorporated into the Council’s documents. Updates to the documents
attached to this report are highlighted to indicate the changes made, in

accordance with members’ requests.

12.5 No changes to the CIPFA Code of Practice, the Public Interest Disclosure
Act. or Housing Benefit Regulations have been made, therefore the main
changes reflect the operational re-organisation to bring the Housing Benefit
Fraud Investigation Team within Audit and Risk Management and operate a
single fraud reporting telephone and email service.

Do 4 Gf 4



Page 5

UNCLASSIFIED

HARINGEY COUNCIL

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
STRATEGY

| Author: Anne Woods
Owner: Anne Woods
Version: 6,0 o e ( Delated: 5 y
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
Issue Status: FINAL
Date of First Issue: | 2004
Date of Latest Re- | 20/09/11, e e - Deleted: 22/06/10 ]
issue
| Deleted: June 2010 :?

September 2011, )

_Pagelof9 L



Page 6

UNCLASSIFIED

Heading ] Page
1. Why we have an anti-fraud strategy _______ 3

2. Qur written rules 4
3. How we expect people and organisations to behave . 5

4. Preventing Fraud and Corruption 6

5. Detecting and Investigating Fraud andké“orrupﬁon 7

7. Our commitment 8
Appendix 1 - Fraud Response Plan
Appendix 2 — Whistleblowing Policy
Appendix 3 - Housing Benefit Anti-fraud Strategy and
Sanctions Policy

Appendix 4 — Anti-money Laundering Policy L B

.| Deleted: June 2010

Seplember 200L, e e Page2of9



Page 7

UNCLASSIFIED

If you have any concerns about fraud or corruption, please call:
Fraudwatch on Freephone 0500 500 777. You can also click on the
following link to send an email to fraudcall@Haringey.gov.uk

| We will take your concerns seriously and ensure that we treat them in .-

the strictest confidence.

1. Why we have an anti-fraud strategy

1.1 Haringey Council employs approximately 9,000 staff and has an annual turnover of
more than £1billion. We provide a wide range of services to individuals, households,
the voluntary sector and work in partnership with many other private and public sector
organisations. Haringey Council is also part of the Haringey Strategic Partnership,
working in a formal partnership with the main public services, voluntary, community
and private sectors to deliver the Sustainable Community Strategy.

1.2 The Council aims to provide excellent services to all its users. However, the size and
nature of our services, like any other large organisation, means that there is a risk of
loss due to fraud and corruption, both from within the Council and outside it.

1.3 This anti-fraud and corruption strategy is intended to address any instances where
fraud or corruption are suspected. The definition of Fraud is based on the Fraud Act
2006 which introduced three specific offences of fraud: fraud by false representation;
fraud by failing to disclose information; and fraud by abuse of position. Corruption is
defined as "the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or reward,
which may influence the action of any person". Our Fraud Response Plan, which is
attached to this strategy at Appendix 1, gives some examples of fraud and corruption.

1.4 The key message we want to publicise is that we expect all Councillors, employees,
consultants, contractors, partner organisations and service users, to be honest, and to
give us any help, information and support we need to deal with fraud and corruption.

1.5 We are committed to making sure that the opportunity for fraud and corruption is
reduced as much as possible. Where the possibility of fraud or corruption exists, or is
identified, we will respond promptly, deal with it firmly and in line with the procedures
outlined in this strategy.

1.6 An important part of this approach is having an anti-fraud and corruption strategy,
which we will use to advise and guide Councillors, employees and our partners on our
approach to the serious issues of fraud and corruption. This strategy is written for the
benefit of employees, Councillors, members of the public and our partners.
Organisations and businesses dealing with the Council are also expected to act
honestly. It is designed to help everyone to understand their roles and responsibilities
in relation to preventing and reporting fraud and corruption, as well as aiming to ensure
that everyone is treated consistently and fairly.

| September 20, __ Pagelof9

e e L _ -

.

to:

Deleted: If you want tc report
any concerns about Benefit
Fraud you can send an email

benefit fraud@haringey. gov.uk

jor call 020 8489 2868.9

1

. i Deleted: June 2010

)



Page 8

UNCLASSIFIED

1.7 The anti-fraud and corruption strategy is part of the Council’s overall approach to

minimising the risk of fraud. The Coungcil also participates in the statutory national data

matching process, the National Fraud Initiative (NF), which uses information from
organisations across the country to prevent and detect fraud.

1.8 The strategy set out in this document covers the following areas:
e Our written rules
« How we expect our Councillors and employees to behave
« Preventing fraud and corruption
« Detecting and investigating fraud and corruption
e Training

2. Qur written rules

2. 3We have a number of procedures and rules to make sure that how we work and
manage our finances on a day to day basis is properly controlled. These procedures are
essential to ensure the possibility of fraud and corruption is minimised. It is important
that all Councillors and employees know about them, and understand their role in
complying with them.

2.2 The most important procedures which relate to all employees and Councillors are:
Council Constitution;

Contract Standing Orders;

Financial Procedure Rules;

Code of Conduct for Employees; and

Code of Conduct for Councillors.

2 3|ndividual departments have also introduced their own measures, in addition to the
above list. These are designed specifically to manage their services and may not relate
to any other part of the Council. Examples may include working manuals, guidance
notes and operating procedures.

2 4 Directors must make sure that all employees have access to both the procedures which
relate to everyone and to any which relate specifically to their services. All employees
should receive suitable training in the use of these procedures.

2 5Councillors and employees are responsible for making sure that they read and
understand the rules and regulations that apply to them, and act in line with them.

2.61f anyone breaks these rules and regulations we may take formal action against them.
This may ultimately include ending their employment with the Council, in respect of
employees, and referral to the Standards Committee, in respect of Councillors. It is the
responsibility of the Monitoring Officer (in Haringey, this is the Head of Legal Services)
to report matters to the Standards Committee.

2 7The Council’s Contract Standing Orders include the procedures for letting contracts to
external organisations. In addition to clauses identifying how the Council will deal with

September 2004, . .. _Pagedof9

[ peteted: june 200



Page 9

UNCLASSIFIED
identified cases of fraud and/or corruption, the Council’s standard contract terms and
conditions include the requirement for organisations to publicise the Council’'s
whistleblowing arrangements to ensure that concerns can be raised by people who do
business with the Council.

2.8Homes for Haringey (HfH), is the organisation which manages the Council’s housing
stock, including leasehold properties. Haringey Council has a management agreement
with HfH, but HfH has its own arrangements for confidential reporting and
whistleblowing. These are approved by the HfH Board and are publicised on the HfH
website. Internal Audit work closely with HfH to ensure that any issues raised which
may impact on the Council are dealt with appropriately.

2.9The Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) is the group of organisations which work
together to achieve the aims of the Haringey Sustainable Community Strategy. The HSP
has representatives from the police, fire, health, and voluntary sector services and has
its own arrangements for confidential reporting and whistleblowing. These are approved
by the HSP Board and are publicised on the HSP website. The Council acts as the lead
organisation for the HSP, and also for receiving and investigating any concerns raised
through the HSP whistleblowing process. Internal Audit work closely with the HSP to
ensure that any issues which may impact on the Council are dealt with appropriately.

3. How we expect people and organisations to behave

3.1We expect all individuals, groups and organisations that receive services from, or
provide services on behalf of the Council to be honest in their dealings with us and our
clients and customers. We expect all our Councillors and employees, including
temporary and agency employees, to lead by example in these matters.

3.2The Council has Codes of Conduct for Councillors and employees and these set out an
approach to work that is both honest and fair. Councillors and employees must act in
line with these Codes at all times. The council also issues regular reminders to all
employees explaining the Council’s view on fraud and corruption and of their
responsibilities under the Code of Conduct and the Council’s Constitution.

3.3We feel our Councillors and employees have an important part to play in dealing with

fraud and corruption. Dishonesty and fraud harms the Council and the reputation of its

| employees. Our Constitution (Part 4, Section |, paragraph 5.52) states that our

employees and Councillors must inform us if they suspect any case of fraud or
corruption.

3.4 Organisations that work in partnership, or through contractual arrangements, with the
Council are bound by the terms and conditions of their written arrangements, service
level or management agreements, or contracts which include clauses relating to fraud
and corruption and arrangements for promoting the Council’s whistleblowing policy.
The HSP and Homes for Haringey have separate reporting arrangements for fraud and
whistleblowing, as set out above. The Council expects that these contractual and other
arrangements will be complied with.

| September201i, eoo - PageSofs

p /@eleted: June 2010

ey

)



Page 10

, UNCLASSIFIED

3.51f anyone refers a matter to the Head of Audit and Risk Management which relates to
Homes for Haringey or the HSP, we will advise the individual whose responsibility it is
to take any action and make sure that the information is passed to the relevant people
to enable a proper review to be completed.

3.6 The Council’s Constitution (Part 4, Section |, paragraph 5.56) also describes how the
Head of Audit and Risk Management is entitled to have unrestricted access to any part
of the Council, including its buildings, records, documents, items of equipment and
members of staff.

3.7We will deal with all information fairly and confidentially. We will try, as far as possible,
not to reveal the names of the people who gave us the information. Our fraud response
plan attached at Appendix 1 gives more advice on this issue for employees and
Section 5 of this strategy details how people can report any suspected cases of fraud
or corruption.

3.8 We expect our Directors and the Assistant Chief Executive to deal firmly and quickly
with anyone who is responsible for fraud or corruption. The Head of Audit and Risk
Management, in consultation with the relevant Director, or Assistant Chief Executive
may refer matters to the police if any criminal activity is suspected, or has taken place.

3.9 The Council will always seek to recover any monies, assets, or other resources which
have been identified as being obtained via fraud or corruption. The Council’s debt
recovery processes will be used in cases that have been dealt with by internal
disciplinary or contractual arrangements. Where criminal proceedings apply, the
Council will seek recovery through the Court processes.

3.10We will treat all concerns raised in good faith seriously. We must ensure that any
investigation process is not misused and therefore any abuse, such as raising
unfounded or malicious allegations, will be dealt with as a disciplinary matter.

4. Preventing fraud and corruption

4.1 We believe that if we are to eliminate fraud and corruption, we must prevent it from
happening in the first place. It is essential that we have clear rules and procedures that
all Councillors, employees, consultants and contractors understand and can work
within. These include the main procedures which apply to all Councillors and
employees, and these are set out in section 2 of this strategy. The following section
sets out what we as a Council must do, as part of our regular working arrangements, to
reduce the risk of fraud and corruption.

4.2 We must regularly review and update our written rules to ensure that they keep up to
date with the latest government legislation.

4.3 Directors and the Assistant Chief Executive must make sure that suitable levels of

controls are included in working procedures, especially financial procedures. It is
important that employees’ duties are organised so that no one person can carry out a

e e,

. ( Deleted: June 2010

—J



Page 11

UNCLASSIFIED
complete transaction without some form of checking process being built into the
system.

4.4 We must follow our procedures when employing, or considering employing, new staff.
We must undertake all relevant checks required by law, including Police and Criminal
Records Bureau checks and our own internal procedures, including previous
employment, qualification and reference checks.

4.5 We are committed to working and co-operating with other organisations to prevent
organised fraud and corruption. The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team and Housing Benefit
Investigation Team work with Council staff and external organisations, including other
coungils and social landlords, to undertake a range of data matching and anti-fraud
projects which help to reduce and detect fraud. Wherever possible, we will be
prepared to help and exchange information with other Councils and organisations to
deal with fraud. We will only share information in line with the relevant Data Protection
legislation. This includes taking part in the statutory national data matching exercise to

4.6 We have confidential facilities available for people to give us information that may
prevent fraud and corruption. These include dedicated telephone lines for fraud,
including Housing Benefit fraud and the email reporting facility, which members of the
public can use to give us information about any concerns they may have.

4.7 We will make sure that full details of reporting facilities are widely published to the
public, partner and contracting organisations, Councillors and employees, and that all
information we receive in this way is investigated and dealt with quickly and in line with
our procedures.

5. Detecting and investigating fraud and corruption

5.1You should read this corporate anti-fraud and corruption strategy in conjunction with
our fraud response plan which is shown at Appendix 1.

5.2 Under our Code of Conduct and Council Constitution, employees must report any
suspected cases of fraud and corruption to the appropriate manager, or, if necessary,
directly to the Head of Audit and Risk Management. Reporting cases in this way is
essential to the anti-fraud and corruption strategy and makes sure that:

* Suspected cases of fraud and corruption are investigated properly;

* the fraud response plan is carried out properly;

e there is a standard process for dealing with all suspected cases of fraud and
corruption; and

» People and our interests are protected.

5.3The Council's Whistleblowing Policy, which is shown at Appendix 2, is intended to
encourage and enable employees to raise serious concerns. By law, employees
reporting concerns in this way have certain rights. These are set out in the Public
Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

l September 2011, o

. _Page7ofy

D

S

/, fDeleted: June 2010



Page 12

UNCLASSIFIED

5.4 The Head of Audit and Risk Management will work with Directors, the Assistant Chief
Executive and the Head of Human Resources to decide how the allegations made will
be investigated. This will include referring cases to the police where necessary. We will
prosecute offenders and we will carry out our disciplinary procedures where
appropriate. We will ensure that any internal proceedings do not prejudice any criminal
case. The Council will seek recovery of monies and/or other assets obtained by fraud or
corruption.

5.51n cases relating to Housing Benefits and Council Tax Fraud, which are subject to
statutory regulations and reguirements in relation to benefit claims, the action taken will

which is attached at Appendix 3. The Housing Benefit Investigation Team is within Audit

and Risk Management and the team liaises with Council departments, the Department

for Work and Pensions, other local authorities and external organisations to prevent and

relation to housing and council tax benefits.

5.6 The Council needs to ensure that there are appropriate arrangements and processes in
place for the monitoring and reporting of any instances of suspected money laundering
operations. The corporate Anti-money laundering policy is attached as Appendix 4 and
explains what money laundering is, and what the Council does to ensure it manages the
risks associated with crime and money laundering.

6. Training and raising awareness

6.1We understand that the key to introducing a successful anti-fraud and corruption
strategy and making sure it continues to apply will depend on effective training and
making sure that everyone is aware of their responsibilities.

6.2We support the idea of providing training for employees who are involved in, or who
manage, systems. We will make sure that their responsibilities and duties are regularly
reviewed and employees are reminded of these on a regular basis. Audit and Risk
Management provide regular fraud awareness briefing sessions and guidance to front-
line staff and reminders are included in corporate briefing notes and newsletters to all
staff on how to report fraud.

6.3We are also committed to training and developing our employees who are involved in
investigating fraud and corruption. We will continue to provide suitable training so that
their work is carried out in line with any legal requirements and our own written rules.

6.4In addition, we need to ensure that everyone, including Councillors, employees,
partners and contractors, is aware of the proper procedures and processes they can
use to report and respond to any suspected case of fraud. The publication of this
strategy and regular reminders of their responsibilities will assist us in raising and
maintaining awareness. ’

7. Our commitment

‘ Septemnber 2011

__ Page8ot9

follow the policies and procedures within \_the Housing Benefits anti-fraud_strategy, -

detect benefit fraud. The team’s work forms part of the council’s overall approach to -
reducing the risk of fraud and Appendix 3 provides details of how to report fraud in . -~

[ Deleted: laid down by the
Benefits and Local Taxation
division. The

[

‘ ‘( Deleted: and

e s
| Delated: June 2010

—



Page 13

UNCLASSIFIED

7.1We are committed to tackling fraud and corruption whenever it happens. Our response
will be effective and organised and will rely on the principles set out in this strategy.

7.2We will continue to review our rules and procedures and will make sure that this
strategy document is regularly reviewed to keep it up to date and in line with our written
rules. :

| September 2011, __ Page9of9

-

. { Deleted: June 2010




Page 14



Page 15

UNCLASSIFIED
APPENDIX 1
Haringey Fraud Response Plan

1. Why we have a Fraud Response Plan
1.1 Haringey Council is committed to developing a culture of honesty and zero
tolerance to fraud and corruption. ’

1.2 In line with that commitment, the Council’s Anti-Fraud Strategy outlines how we
aim to prevent, investigate and report on fraud and corruption.

1.3 This Fraud Response Plan supports the Council’s approach by setting out the ways
in which individuals or organisations can make their concerns known about
Suspected fraud or corruption. It also outlines how the Council will deal with such
instances.

2. What we want to know about

2.1 This Fraud Response Plan is intended to be put in place where concerns about
fraud or corruption have been raised. The definition of Fraud is based on the Fraud
Act 2006 which introduced three specific offences of fraud: fraud by false
representation; fraud by failing to disclose information; and fraud by abuse of
position. Corruption is defined as: "The offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of
an inducement or reward, which may influence the action of any person".

2.2 Concerns or allegations which fall within the scope of other procedures, e.g.
grievances about an employee’s own employment, mistreatment of vulnerable
clients, or acts of discrimination, will usually be referred to the relevant department
and dealt with under those procedures.

2.3 Fraudulent or corrupt acts may include:
» Where a process or system is likely to be abused by either employees or pubilic,
e.g. allocation of housing or other accommodation
e Where individuals or companies have fraudulently obtained money from the
Councll, e.g. by submitting invalid invoices, or false applications for council tax
or business rate reductions and refunds, or Housing Benefit fraud

s _Where individuals or organisations have fraudulently obtained property or other<- - - {Format_te& Bullets and
assets from the Council, e.g. by submitting false applications for housing Numbering

* Where Council equipment is used for personal use, e.g. personal use of Council
vehicles, or IT equipment

» Where there is a misuse of resources, e.g. theft of building materials, working
whilst off sick, false overtime or flexi-time claims

* Activities undertaken by officers of the Council which may be illegal, or against
the Council’s Constitution or policies, e.g. receiving gifts or hospitality

2.4 The above list cannot cover every example of fraud or corruption. If you have any
questions, please contact the Head of Audit and Risk Management for further
advice and guidance (Tel: 020 8489 3768).

Page | of 5



Page 16

UNCLASSIFIED

3. How we protect those people who raise concerns
3.1 Confidentiality

We will try to protect a person’s identity when he or she raises a concern and does
not want their name to be revealed. However, in some cases, the investigation
process itself may reveal the source of the information. Also, the person may be
required to make a statement either as part of the investigation process, or to
provide evidence for any disciplinary hearing, or criminal prosecution.

3.2 Harassment or Bullying

We understand that reporting any concerns may be a difficult decision to make,
especially if the individual is worried about suffering harassment or bullying from
those responsible for carrying out the fraud or corruption. We will not tolerate
harassment or bullying and our disciplinary procedures and our policy on
harassment and bullying support this. We will take action to protect those who
raise a concern in good faith.

3.3 Anonymous Allegations

We would always encourage people come forward to discuss their concerns with
us directly. Concerns raised anonymously may be much less convincing, but,
depending on the seriousness of the issues raised and the amount of information
provided, we will still consider investigating the concern further. However, unless
we are able to confirm the allegation from other sources, we may not be able to
undertake a full investigation.

3.4 Untrue Allegations

A concern may be raised in good faith by some-one, but it is not found to be the
case by the subsequent investigation. No action will be taken against the person
who raised the original concern. However, if people make allegations they know to
be untrue, we may consider taking further action against those individuals making
the allegations.

4. What should an employee or Councilior do if they suspect fraud or corruption?

4.1

4.2

4.3

Employees and Councillors are often the first to realise when things may be going
wrong, or fraud and corruption may be taking place. However, they may feel that
they would not be supported by colleagues or managers, if they raised their
concerns, or they may even be afraid of being harassed or bullied. In these
circumstances, an individual may feel it would be easier to ignore their concerns,
rather than report it.

The Council's Whistleblowing Policy is intended to encourage and enable
individuals to raise concerns within the Council, rather than overlooking a problem.
The policy applies to all Haringey employees, staff of Council contractors, agency
staff and trainees. '

This policy has been discussed with the relevant Trade Unions and professional
organisations and has their support. A copy of the Whistleblowing Policy is
attached to the Anti-fraud and corruption strategy, and is available on the Council’s

Page2 of 5



Page 17

v UNCLASSIFIED
website and intranst site, or can be obtained from Human Resources, or your
Trade Union Representative.

4.4 If an employee suspects fraud, they should raise their concern with their line
manager. Failing that, the employee should approach their line manager’s
manager, or the Director. If the employee cannot raise their concern within their

department, they should approach Internal Audit, their HR Business Partner, or the .

Head of Legal Services.

4.5 The nature of the complaint will determine the Council’s course of action and the
employee’s concerns may be investigated by service management, Internal Audit,
or Personnel.

4.6 Audit and Risk Management can be contacted at:
Level 1,Alexandra House,
10 Station Road, Wood Green,
London, N22 7TR
Telephone: 020 8489 3768
Email: fraudcall@haringey.gov.uk

5. What should a member of the public or a partner organisation do if they
suspect fraud or corruption?

5.1 The Council encourages members of the public or a partner organisation who
suspect fraud and corruption to contact the Council’s Head of Legal Services or
Audit and Risk Management in the first instance.

5.2 Audit and Risk Management operates independently of all other Council
departments. Contact details for Audit and Risk Management are set out at
paragraph 4.6 above.

5.3 The Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) has its own arrangements for confidential
reporting and whistleblowing. These are approved by the HSP Board and are
publicised on the HSP website. The Council acts as the lead organisation for the
HSP, and also for receiving and investigating any concerns raised through the HSP
whistleblowing process. Internal Audit work closely with the HSP to ensure that any
issues which may affect the Council are dealt with appropriately.

5.4 The possible courses of action taken by the Council are outlined in section 6 below.

6. How will allegations of fraud or corruption be dealt with by the council?

6.1 For issues raised by employees or members of the public, the action taken by the
Council will depend on the nature of the concern. The matters raised may be
investigated internally, or referred to the Police.

6.2 We cannot say how every individual case will be dealt with. However, the Council
does have a Disciplinary Code of Practice which sets out the general processes for

in disciplinary cases. We will comply fully with this Code in our investigations. As a
general guide, we will use the following approach to ensure that clear lines of
Page 3 of 5

( Deleted: Personnel Manager

.- - | Deleted: Fax: 020 8489 38271




l

Page 18

. UNCLASSIFIED
communication are in place, ensure that appropriate people and specialists are
involved at the right times, and confidentiality is maintained. We will:

« Inform the relevant manager of the allegation;

. Undertake an initial review to see if the allegation could be true;

« Advise the relevant manager of the results of the initial review and agree whether
there needs to be any further investigation;

« Inform the Personnel Department of the investigation to date and agree whether
the employee should be suspended from work to allow for further investigations
to take place;

« Agree an approach with the manager and personnel to complete the
investigation, together with any relevant timescales;

. Produce a final report on the findings of the investigation, which will say whether
any breaches of the Council's procedures, regulations, or Code of Conduct have
taken place.

6.3 Within ten working days of a concern being received, the responsible officer will
write to the complainant:

Acknowledging that the concern has been received;

Indicating how they propose to deal with the matter;

Giving an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response; and

Provide individuals with information on staff support mechanisms.

s & & @

6.4 The Council accepts that those people who reported the alleged fraud or
corruption need to be assured that the matter has been properly addressed.
Subject to legal constraints, the Council will inform the person raising the concern
about the progress and outcome of any investigation.

7. Alternative methods for raising concerns

7.4 If either an individual, member of a partner organisation or the public, or an
employee feels that it is right to take the matter outside these processes, the
following are possible ways forward:

» your local Councillor - If you live within Haringey, your Councillor can be
contacted at their regular surgery in your area. If you are not sure which is your
Councillor, visit our website, www.haringey.gov.uk or call 020 8489 2947. You
can also write to your councillor at: Member Services, Level 5, River Park House,
225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ.

« the council’'s external auditors (Grant Thornton) — These are appointed to
review and comment on the Council’s finances and performance. By law, they
must be completely independent from the Council. They can be contacted at
paul.dossett@gtuk.com.

» your Trade Union - employees may invite their Trade Union to raise a matter on
their behalf.

Page 4 of 5



Page 19

UNCLASSIFIED
~* the Police - suspicions of fraud or corruption may be reported directly to the
Police.

Page 5 of 5



Page 20



Page 21

WHISTLEBLOWING

Contents

WHISTLEBLOWING

Background

Summary of Whistleblowing Policy
Public Interest Disclosure Act
Whistleblowing Policy

» Introduction

e Who it applies to

e How you Identify matters of concern

e How to raise your concern

How the Council will respond

Investigating the case

The Responsible Officer

e How the matter can be taken further

» Protection for Whistleblowers - Confidentiality

¢ Untrue Allegations

» Anonymous Allegations

s Victimisation

» Contracting Organisations

Guidance Notes for Managers

Appendix 2

Page



Page 22

" WHISTLEBLOWING. .

The Government's paper on an ethical framework for local government proposed that
every local authority should institute a procedure for whistleblowing, which would
enable workers to raise concerns about malpractice confidentially inside and, if
necessary, outside the organisation. In line with these proposals, the Council
designed a whistleblowing policy based on guidance from the Local Government
Board (LGMB) and this was agreed by Personnel Sub Committee on 10 November
1998. The Council's whistleblowing policy is kept under review to ensure it complies
with relevant guidance and best practice.

The Whistleblowing Policy is set out in full on page 3 with additional Guidance for
Managers on page 7. Key points from the Policy are listed below together with
information on the Public Interest Disclosure Act which provides protection for
whistleblowers.

e

. Where a w‘o/rk}ér Bgs ébncerns about malpractice (and it is not appropriate to raise
them through other procedures) they should be raised with:

= =

either (a)  The worker's line manager

or failing that (b) ~ The line manager's manager (grandparent role) or
the director

2nd step (c) Head of Audit and Risk Management, Human Resources
or Head of Legal Services

3rd step (d)  Members

final step (e)  an external organisation - i.e. Grant Thornton. This is the
Council’s independently appointed External Auditor and can be contacted at
Grant Thornton, Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square,
London, NW1 2EP, or via email at paul.dossett@gtuk.com

o The Council will provide a written response to the whistleblower, assuming the
referral is not made anonymously, within ten days indicating how it proposes to
deal with the concerns raised.

> The Council will seek to protect the worker’s identity when they raise a concern
and do not want their name to be disclosed. However, during the investigation the
source of the information may be revealed and individuals may be required to
provide a statement.

» The Council will not tolerate harassment or victimisation and will take action to
protect a worker raising a concern in good faith.

Revised 06/2008



Page 23

* Investigations conducted under this Policy will follow the same process as the
Disciplinary Procedures for investigating cases of misconduct/gross misconduct .

» If employees make an allegation which they believe to be genuine but is
then not proven, no action will be taken against them. However, employees
who maliciously raise an unfounded concern may have disciplinary action
taken against them.

Under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998, a worker will have the right not to
suffer detriment or be unfairly dismissed as the result of speaking out about crime,
fraud, miscarriages of justice, dangers to health and safety, breaches of civil service
code or risks to the environment.

The Whistleblower must reasonably believe that one of the conditions that constitutes
a qualifying disclosure is occurring, and must make the disclosure in good faith and
not for personal gain.

A qualifying disclosure means any disclosure of information which in the reasonable
belief of the worker making the disclosure tends to show one or more of the following:

 that a criminal offence has been committed, is being committed, or is likely to be
committed;

e that a person has failed, is failing or is likely to fail to comply with any legal
obligation to which he is subject;

* that a miscarriage of justice has occurred, is occurring or is likely to occur;

 that the health or safety of any individual has been, is being or is likely to be
endangered;

» that the environment has been, is being or is likely to be damaged.

If workers wish to raise the matter externally rather than internally, they will be
protected only if they can show that they are not motivated by personal gain and that
they reasonably believe the information they are giving is true.

If victimised by their employers, whistleblowers can bring a claim to an employment
tribunal for compensation. Awards will be uncapped and based on the losses
suffered. Gagging clauses in employment contracts and severance agreements will
be void.

Revised 06/2008



Page 24

ISTEEBE

Workers of the Council have an important role in helping the organisation o oromote

good practice while providing a service to the community and protecting its
vulnerable clients.

Workers are usually the first to know when something is going seriously wrong - be it
a serious danger to the public or a major fraud. All too often the alarm is not sounded
on malpractice. The result is that the people in charge do not get the chance to take
action before real damage is done.

Whistleblowing policies aim to ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and
addressed in the workplace and are increasingly recognised as a key tool to deliver
good practice. It is essential for Haringey that a whistleblowing policy/procedure is in
place and well publicised so all staff are aware of what is required of them.

We must ensure that the code meets the requirements of the Council’s equality
policies and is not misused in any way to discriminate against minority groups.

This policy applies to all Council workers which includes senior and junior members
of staff. The following sections set out what you should do and how the council will
respond in cases which are referred under this policy.

That concern may be something that:-
e is unlawful

+ is against the Council’s standing orders or policies

« falls below established standards or practice

e amounts to improper conduct

e involves clients or the public being put in danger

e involves funds being stolen or wasted.

This is not an exhaustive list and you should speak to your manager, or contact one
of the people or organisations listed below, if you need further advice.

3-,"H’owfto.; raiséYbﬁrfconcema X
Where you have concerns about malpractice and it is not appropriate to raise them
through other procedures such as grievance procedures, they should be raised with:-

either (a)  your line manager

or failing that ~ (b)  the line manager's manager (grandparent role) or
the director

2nd step (c)  the Head of Audit and Risk Management, Human

Resources, or the Head of Legal Services

iRevised 06/2008



Page 25

3rd step (d)  Members

final step e) an external organisation - Grant Thornton. This is
the Council's independently appointed External Auditor
who can be contacted at Grant Thornton, Grant Thornton
House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London, NW1 2EP, or
via email at paul.dossett@gtuk.com

The decision to raise concerns with the managers listed above, will depend on
the seriousness and sensitivity or the issues involved and who is thought to be
involved in the malpractice. If you believe that management is involved, you
could approach any of the following: the Head of Legal Services, the Head of
Audit and Risk Management, Human Resources or Grant Thornton, the
Council's external Auditors.

4. How the Council wil respor
Within ten days of a concem being raised the responsible person will:-

* Assess the complaint and identify the most effective process to use to
investigate the allegations raised.

* Notify the Head of Audit and Risk Management that a complaint has
been raised to ensure it is recorded properly in accordance with this
policy.

e write to the person raising the complaint, assuming that the referral has not
been made anonymously, to acknowledge their complaint

* indicate how they propose to deal with the matter raised

* give an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final
response

» provide individuals with information on staff support mechanisms.

There are existing procedures in place to enable individuals to lodge a
grievance relating to their own employment. A grievance should be seen as a
direct concern to individuals whilst whistleblowing concerns the wider
organisation.

This Whistleblowing Policy is intended to cover concerns that fall outside the
scope of other procedures These include:-

» conduct which is an offence or a breach of law

e health and safety risks, including risks to the public as well as other
employees

the unauthorised use of public funds

possible fraud and corruption

damages to the environment

sexual or physical abuse of clients

other unethical conduct.

e @& o e o

Revised 06/2008



Page 26

5. Investigating the case
Following an allegation, where appropriate, an independent and impartial
manager will be involved in the investigation.

Managers will make sure that the investigation is carried out as quickly and as
thoroughly as possible.

Once an investigation commences, every effort will be made to bring it to an
early conclusion.

To conduct an investigation under the Whistleblowing Policy, managers will
follow the same process as the Disciplinary Procedures for investigating cases
of misconduct/gross misconduct.

An investigation may conclude that, potentially, there has been a breach of the
Council's Code of Conduct and Disciplinary Rules. In these circumstances,
management would invoke the disciplinary process.

The amount of contact between the officers considering the issues and you will
depend on the nature of the matters raised, the potential difficulties involved
and the clarity of the information provided.

The Council will take steps to minimise any difficulties which you may
experience as a result of raising a concern. For instance, if you are required to
give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the Council will arrange
for you to receive advice about the procedure.

The Council accepts that you need to be assured that the matter has been
properly addressed. Thus, subject to legal constraints, we will inform you of the
progress and outcome of any investigation.

6. The res ole. officer

The Head of Legal Services, (Monitoring Officer), has overall responsibility for
the maintenance and operation of this policy. The Head of Audit and Risk
Management will maintain a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in
a form which does not breach your confidentiality) and will report as necessary
to the Council

7. How it‘h'e,,_maytter can be taken further -

This policy is intended to provide you with an avenue within the Council to
raise concerns. The Council hopes you will be satisfied with any action taken. If
you are not, and if you feel it is right to take the matter outside the Council, the
following are possible contact points:

» Grant Thornton — The Council's External Auditors
your trade union
your local Citizens Advice Bureau

@

&

Revised 06/2008



Page 27

e the District Auditor
¢ the Police.

If you do take the matter outside the Council, you should ensure that you do not
disclose confidential information. Check with the contact point about that.

The Council will seek to protect an individual's identity when they raise a
concern and do not want their name to be disclosed. However, during the
investigation the source of the information may be revealed and the individual
may be required to provide a statement.

If you make an allegation which you think is genuine but is not proven, no

action will be taken against you. If, however, you maliciously raise an
unfounded concern, then disciplinary action may be taken against you.

The policy encourages individuals to put their name to their allegations. However, it
is understood that some people may wish to remain anonymous. Concerns
expressed in this way are much less powerful, but will be considered, at the
discretion of the Council. -

In exercising the discretion the factors to be taken into account would include: the
seriousness of the issues raised, and the credibility of the concern.

The Coljné\i‘l wnllnot tolerate harassment or victimisation and will take action to
protect you when you raise a concern in good faith.

If you do receive reprisals from those responsible for the malpractice or any other
member of staff, they may be disciplined under the Council's procedures.

12'.; ,.Cdntracti ng Oﬁrgahisations;

These arrangements will be extended, with appropriate variations, to staff of
contracting organisations. Such arrangements will be carefully confined to those
areas of activity relating specifically to contractors’ relationships with the Council and
should not extend to contractors’ internal arrangements.

it is necessary for all involved in the process, i.e. Council staff, whistleblowers
and anyone accused of malpractice, for whistleblowing to be dealt with
properly, quickly and discreetly to make the process efficient, fair and
effective.

6
Revised 06/2008



Page 28

Whistleblowing is when a worker discloses, i.e. ‘blows the whistle’ on,  any
wrongdoings such as fraud, malpractice, mismanagement, breach of any health and
safety law or any other illegal act, either on the part of management or by fellow
workers.

It often happens when:-
i) workers have tried to complain through internal channels and have failed
ii) the organisation’s culture persuades workers that complaints will be ignored

iii) the person committing malpractice is the worker’s direct boss and/or at the top of
the organisation, so again workers feel to complain directly would be useless and
result in victimisation.

Management Responsibility |

When workers discover something is wrong they should be encouraged to report the
malpractice. This gives managers the chance to correct any malpractice before the
issue escalates.

Managers must try to ensure that workers who make a complaint have confidence
that:

a) itis going to be properly investigated and addressed
b) they will suffer no detriment as a result of speaking out.

N.B Victimising or deterring workers from raising legitimate concerns is a
serious disciplinary offence. Whistleblowers are also afforded protection
under the Public Interest Disclosure Act (see page 2).

Managers must have respect for the confidentiality of workers raising concerns if
they (the workers) so wish. However, workers should be made aware that during the
investigation the source of the information may need to be revealed and the
individual may be required to provide a statement.

In all cases where an employee uses the Council's Whistleblowing policy to raise
their concerns, the person receiving the concern must notify the Head of Audit and
Risk Management. They are the Council's nominated officer for recording any
Whistleblowing referrals and are required to maintain a log, which ensures
confidentiality, and provide periodic information on the use of the Whistleblowing

policy.

Revised 06/2008



Page 29

ek
As a first step, individuals should normally raise concerns with their line manager or
their manager's manager (grandparent role) or the Director. Secondly, if for example
they believe management is involved, they should approach the Head of Legal
Services, Human Resources, or the Head of Audit and Risk Management. The next
step should be to Members and finally to an external agency (see below).

Depending on the seriousness of the allegation and who is suspected of the
malpractice, individuals may wish to report directly to the Head of Legal Services or
Members.

It must be emphasised that, before deciding on using external mechanisms, a final
request to the Head of Legal Services or members should be encouraged.

If whistleblowers fear that their employer will bring retribution, they can make a wider
disclosure to the police, the media or MPs.

External Reporting Mechanisms
If individuals do not feel confident using the internal reporting channels they should
contact Grant Thornton, an external organisation who are the Council’s
independently appointed External Auditor and can be contacted at Grant Thornton,
Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London, NW1 2EP, or via
email at paul.dossett@gtuk.com

Revised 06/2008



Page 30



Page 31
Appendix 3

Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit — Anti-fraud Strategy and
Sanctions Policy

Anti-fraud Strategy

1. Statement of Intent

1.1 Haringey Council is responsible for administering public funds. The
Benefits and Local Taxation Service has a key role in ensuring that the
right benefits go to the right people in accordance with their entitiement.

1.2 The Council will ensure that effectjve policies and procedures are in place
to prevent and detect benefit fraud either by employees or claimants. The
Council will use the criminal and civil powers available to it to take action
against those who have committed benefit fraud.

1.3 Prosecutions may be undertaken by the Council through its own Legal
Service or in partnership with the Department for Works and Pensions
Solicitors Office, or the Crown Prosecution Service.

2. Measures we have in place to tackle benefit fraud

a) We employ a dedicated team to investigate suspected benefit fraud

) We have a published Sanctions Policy

c) We inform our customers of their responsibility to tell us about any
changes in their circumstances and the documents that they must
provide

d) We have published email and telephone contact details which anyone can
use to refer cases of suspected benefit fraud to us

e) We participate in the National Fraud Initiative data matching exercise

f) Staff involved in benefits administration and fraud investigation attend
regular fraud awareness training

g) We work with other organisations including other Local Authorities, the
Police, UK Border Agency and the Department for Work and Pensions on
joint investigations

h) We publicise successful prosecutions in the local media

3. Who is affected by this strategy?

3.1 This strategy will be applied to anyone who applies for Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Benefit, or anyone who assists a person make a claim
for benefit, which they know is false or dishonest.

3.2 It will also apply to any person who receives Housing Benefit and Council
Tax Benefit, either as a claimant, or a partner of the claimant, appointed
representative, landlord or managing agent or employee of the Council.

4. Deterring Benefit Fraud

4.1The Council recognises that the most people who claim Housing and
Council Tax Benefit are honest and keep within the rules of the system.
However, the Council also recognises that no system is foolproof and will
periodically request anyone in receipt of benefit to confirm their details. It

Page 1 of 5



Page 32
Appendix 3

will also participate in regular data-matching exercises with other
organisations.

4.2 Any person found committing benefit fraud will be subject to the
Council’s Sanctions Policy. The Council will also make use of the full
range of available opportunities to publicise the details of anyone found
guilty of serious benefit fraud. In this way the Council will seek to increase
fraud awareness amongst the community and the consequences of
acting dishonestly.

5. Data Protection Act and other relevant legislation

5.1 Those responsible for investigating benefit fraud will be required to
comply at all times with the relevant legislation relating to the investigation
of criminal offences.

5.2 The Council is registered under the Data Protection Act 1998 for the
purposes of preventing and detecting crime, the prosecution of offenders
and the collection of any tax. The investigators will use appropriate data
disclosure forms to ensure that investigations comply with the legislation
and individuals’ data is used appropriately.

5.3 The Council requires its investigators to work within the guidelines of the
following legislation at all times:
a) The Police and Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) 1984
) Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
c) Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996
d) The Human Rights Act 2000
) The Social Security Administration and Fraud Acts 1992 - 2008

6. Referral of Benefit Fraud
6.1The Council wants to encourage anyone who suspects benefit fraud to
report their suspicions, either openly or anonymously, to the Benefits
Fraud Investigation Team. The details of how to report fraud are also on
the Council’s website and are:
o In writing to: Benefits Fraud Investigation Team, PO Box 22727, Wood
Green, London, N22 7WS;
» By telephone (voicemail facility, 24 hours/7 days a week) on
Freephone 0500 500 777
» By contacting the Benefit Fraud Team directly (9.00am - 5.00pm,
Monday — Friday )
s By email to: fraudcall@Haringey.gov.uk

6.2The Benefit Fraud Investigation Team will investigate those cases where
there is a reasonable suspicion, based on the available evidence, that
fraud is taking place.

6.3Investigations undertaken by the Benefit Fraud Investigation Team are
confidential. Officers are unable to engage with third parties in discussion
about the conduct and nature of their investigations.

—
(@]

Page z o



Page 33
Appendix 3

Sanctions Policy

This policy is intended to provide clear guidance on what sanctions are
available to the Council against anyone who commits benefit fraud and when
the use of a sanction is suitable. The guidelines apply equally to members of
the public, Council staff, and members of the Council.

The Benefit Fraud Investigation Team review each fraud case and any
mitigating circumstances are taken into account on a case by case basis.

Sanctions Available to the Council
The Council has the power to impose three forms of sanction on claimants
who have committed benefit offences:

1. Prosecutions

2. Civil Cautions

3. Administrative Penalties

Prosecutions

Prosecutions will be reserved for those cases which, in the opinion of the
Council, are the most serious. Prior to any decision to prosecute being made,
the Investigator will apply the ‘Evidential Test’ and then the ‘Public Interest
Test’, as set out in the Code for Crown Prosecutors.

Evidential Test

Whilst not an exhaustive list, the investigator should consider the following:

* Isthe evidence of sufficient quality and reliability to support a
prosecution?

~* Isthe reliability of the evidence affected by such factors as the
defendant’s age, mental capacity, or understanding?

» What explanation has the defendant given? Is the court likely to find it
credible in light of the evidence as a whole?

* If the identity of the defendant is likely to be questioned, is the evidence
about this strong enough?

* s the reliability of the evidence likely to be compromised by the accuracy
or credibility of a withess?

Public Interest Test

If the Evidential Test has been met, the Council should then consider whether

or not a prosecution would be in the public interest as defined by the Code

for Crown Prosecutors. The facts in each case will determine if this test is

satisfied. The following list is not exhaustive, but a review may include the

following:

»  Whether the defendant was a ring leader, or an organiser, of the offence:

* Whether there has been any abuse of position or privilege;

»  Whether there are grounds for believing that an offence is likely to be
continued or repeated, based on the person’s previous history;

»  Whether the offence, although not serious in itself, is widespread in the
area where it was committed and so prosecution may act as a deterrent.

Page 3 of 5



Page 34
Appendix 3

When considering a case for prosecution, in addition to the Evidential and

Public Interest Tests outlined above, the investigator should also take the

following into consideration: ‘

o Whether there was a degree of planning in the process that was more
than minimal;

. Whether a false, counterfeit or forged instrument was used in the
commission of the offence;

e Whether offences have been committed against more than one agency,
authority or government department;

o Whether the defendant has a previous history of benefit fraud;

e The duration of the alleged offence;

« Whether the person has refused to accept a Formal Caution or
Administrative Penalty.

Civil Cautions

A Caution is a formal written warning that can be administered as an
alternative to prosecution. Details of the Caution are retained for a period of
five years and may be included if any further benefit fraud offences occur.

The Council may consider issuing a Simple Caution if:

o The claimant has been Interviewed Under Caution (IUC);

« To our knowledge, the claimant has never previously offended;

« There was little or no planning involved in the process of committing the
offence;

e The person has fully admitted the offence during an IUG;

e The person expresses genuine remorse for what they have done.

| If the person refuses the Caution, the case will usually be referred for
prosecution.

Administrative Penalties

Section 115 of the Social Security Administration Act 1992, as amended by
Section 15 of the Social Security (Fraud) Act 1997, allows the Council to
apply an Administrative Penalty as an alternative to prosecution. The penalty
is fixed to 30% of the total qualifying overpayment.

The Council may consider issuing an Administrative Penalty if:
o The claimant has been Interviewed Under Caution;
» To our knowledge the claimant has never previously offended;

. There was little or no planning involved in the process of committing the
offence.

If the person refuses the Administrative Penalty, the case will usually be
referred for prosecution.

Page 4 of b



Page 35
Appendix 3

The Decision to Administer a Sanction.

It is for the Investigating Officer to identify potential sanction cases and
recommend which sanction should be imposed. Once the relevant evidence
has been obtained, the Fraud Investigation Officer’s Line Manager will make
a final decision on what sanction to impose, or whether to proceed. The case
can then be passed to the relevant prosecuting authority for legal action to
be commenced.

Publicity

The Fraud Investigation Team aims to publicise cases where successful
prosecutions have taken place. The final decision to publicise will rest with
the Council’s Communications and Consultation Unit.

Recovery of Overpayments

Regardless of whether or not any sanction action is taken, the Council will try
to recover all overpayments. This action is taken by the Enforcement Team
who will pursue all available methods of recovering the debt.

Proceeds of Crime

The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA) was put in place to demonstrate
that crime does not pay. In addition to the recovery of monies obtained
directly through criminal activity — i.e. the overpaid benefit — the use of POCA
ensures that the full scope of any criminal activity that the fraudulent claimant
is involved with is identified, restrained and confiscated as appropriate.

The Council refers all suitable cases for financial investigation. These
investigations are carried out in conjunction with accredited Financial
Investigators from the Department of Work and Pensions, Serious and
Organised Crime Agency, or the Metropolitan Police Service.

Page 50f 5



Page 36



Page 37
Appendix 4

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

1. What is money laundering?

Money laundering is the term used for several offences involving the proceeds of
crime, or terrorism. This includes possessing, or in any way dealing with, or
concealing, or converting the proceeds of any crime, as well as funds likely to be
used for terrorism, as well as the proceeds of terrorism. Money laundering

is generally used to describe the activities of organised criminals converting the
proceeds of crime into legitimate activities, with the intention of hiding their true
sources of income.

The current Money Laundering legislation covers all proceeds of crime, both money
and property, regardless of how small the value. In reality, it involves a suspicion
that someone is benefiting financially from dishonest activities. Therefore, the
money laundering aspect would be the attempt to do legitimate business with the
Council using assets and/or monies derived from the proceeds of crime or
terrorism.

This guidance sets out the legal and regulatory requirements relating to money
laundering, as they affect both the Council and you personally.

2. What laws exist to control money laundering?

In recent years, new laws have been passed which significantly shift the burden for
identifying acts of money laundering from Police and Government agencies to
organisations and their employees. The principal legislation and regulation relating
to money laundering are the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA), the Terrorism Act
2000 (TA), and the Money Laundering Regulations 2007,

There are three primary offences to take account of:

 ‘concealing’ is where someone knows, or suspects, a case of money
laundering, but conceals or disguises its existence;

+ ‘arranging’ is where someone involves himself or herself in an arrangement to
assist money laundering; and,

+ ‘acquisition’, ‘use’, or ‘possession’ is where someone seeks to benefit from
money laundering by acquiring, using, or possessing the property concerned.

There are also two third party offences to take account of:

» ‘failing to disclose a primary offence’ is where someone becomes aware or
suspects money laundering, but fails to take action in reporting it; and,

» ‘tipping off’ is where someone informs a person who is, or is suspected of
being, involved in money laundering, in such a way as to reduce the likelihood of
being investigated, or prejudicing an investigation.

These money laundering offences may be committed by the Council itself, or by

any of the Members and employees (including permanent, agency and temporary
staff) working within it.

August 2011 Page 1 of 4



Page 38
Appendix 4

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

3 What is the Council’s response to money laundering?

Local authorities have a responsibility to ensure the proper conduct of

public business. The consequences of the Council or any of its Members or
employees facing prosecution under the money laundering legislation would be
very serious and reflect poorly not only on the Council, but on the public service
as a whole.

Although local authorities are unlikely to be a prime target for money laundering, the
size and scope of services is such that it is not possible to discount entirely the
risks surrounding money laundering. In order to mitigate this risk, this policy and
guidance, including reporting arrangements, has been produced.

Management should ensure that arrangements are in place to prevent the Council
and its Members and employees being exposed to money laundering in those
services where there is a potential risk. They should also ensure that those
Members and employees who may become exposed to money laundering are
made fully aware of this guidance and are suitably trained.

It should be noted that the professional bodies of some employees (e.q.
accountants and solicitors) have issued guidance on personal obligations and
responsibilities relating to money laundering, and those employees should
familiarise themselves with that guidance.

4. What are the implications for staff who become involved?

Examples of possible situations involving exposure to money laundering are found
in the appendix to this document. However, it cannot be stressed too strongly that
it is every Member and employee’s responsibility to be vigilant, and to be aware of
the requirement to report actual or suspected cases of money laundering.

While it is unlikely that a Member or employee would commit one of the three
primary offences, a failure to disclose a suspicion of money laundering is a serious
offence in itself, and there are only very limited grounds in law for not reporting a
suspicion. '

Depending on the severity of the suspected offence, the Magistrates’ Court can
issue fines of up to £5,000, or sentences of up to 6 months in prison (or both), and,
in the Crown Court, fines are unlimited, and sentences of up to 14 years may be
handed out.

August 2011 Pagae 2 of 4



Page 39
Appendix 4

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

5. How do we ensure ‘due diligence’?

The Money Laundering Regulations 2007 require the identification and monitoring
of clients on a risk sensitive basis. Where relevant business is undertaken, the
clients need to be subject to some form of risk based due diligence. Most of the
Council’s business is not defined in the regulations as being relevant; it is mainly
those services involving accountancy, audit, legal, and property transactions which
could be carrying out relevant business.

In most cases, the business undertaken will be where the client is another public or
statutory body, and therefore the risk assessment indicates that no further due
diligence about the status of the client is needed. However, for other third party
clients or politically exposed persons (see attached appendix for definition) there
needs to be formal and recorded due diligence checks.

A record will be maintained, by Corporate Finance, including details of the
customer due diligence, which needs to be kept for five years after the end of the
“business relationship together with a record of the transactions also kept for five
years. In these rare circumstances, guidance on performing the due diligence
checks can be obtained from the Head of Audit and Risk Management.

6. What should | do if | suspect a case of money laundering?

If you have any questions or doubts about an individual, company, or transaction

that you have been dealing with, then it is important to seek advice from the Head
of Audit and Risk Management. This approach means that the information can be
considered at the time the transaction or the business takes place.

Section 2 of this guidance states that failure to take action or to report activities is
an offence under the Regulations. However, failure to do sois only an offence if the
suspicion relates, in the event, to an actual crime. Therefore, a common sense
approach needs to be taken, in order to ensure that officers’ time is not wasted.

The Council has nominated the Head of Audit and Risk Management within the
Corporate Resources Directorate as the officer responsible for dealing with any
suspicions of money laundering. You should therefore report any suspicious
transactions or concerns to the Head of Audit and Risk Management in writing. The

¢

August 2011 Page 3 cf 4

O
(<

¢



Page 40
Appendix 4

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

A. Examples of possible situations involving exposure to money laundering

1. There may be situations where funds come into the Council from an unfamiliar
source. In particular, if the Council is forming a new business relationship, or is
considering undertaking a significant one-off transaction, it would be prudent to
identify fully the parties involved. This will be especially true if the parties
concerned are not physically present, or may be acting for absent third parties.

2. Transactions involving the handling of the proceeds of asset disposals, e.g. land
sales, can be especially vulnerable, and may demand further enquiry. Caution
should be exercised in respect of:

. unusual arrangements; offshore funds being used;

. transactions involving a third party who is not known to the Council, or where
the identity of a party is difficult to establish or is undisclosed;

« where an intermediary is involved, or where the ultimate ownership of a
company is hidden; and,

. situations where a party is evasive as to the source of funds.

3. Members or employees having direct contact with the public or businesses may
become suspicious where the nature of the goods or the amounts of the cash
seems inconsistent with what might, in the circumstances, be regarded as
normal.

4. Cashiers may be asked, in the normal course of their work, to accept payments
in unusually amounts of cash for the settlement of debts. As a guide, sums in
the region of £10,000 and above would be regarded as a sum of cash that
should be reported.

5. GCircumstances which might arouse particular suspicion are where cash is
tendered which exceeds significantly the amount of the debt, or the debt is paid
twice (or more) and the person or business requests subsequently a refund from
the Council of the balance.

B. Politically Exposed Persons
The Regulations define politically exposed persons as a person “...who is or has, at
any time in the preceding year been entrusted with a prominent public function by

a3 state other than the United Kingdom, a European Community institution or an
international body” or a family member or known close associate of such a person.

Avqust 201 Page 4 of 4



Haringey .. o

Page 41 Agenda ltem 7

Corporate Committee
Report for: Item
24 October 2011 number
Title: Internal Audit Progress Report - 2011/12 Quarter 2 f
—
Report authorised Director of Corporate Resources
by : O
| K.) "{CL_,\/(Q/ /k{' l(Dl t(
B Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Lead Officer: Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email:  anne.woods@haringey.qov.uk

Ward(s) affected: ALL

Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of
the annual internal audit plan and the implementation of agreed
recommendations as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate
this, progress reports are provided on a quarterly basis for review and
consideration by the Corporate Committee on the work undertaken by the
Internal Audit Service in completing the 2011/12 annual audit plan, together
with the responsive pro-active fraud investigation work, and housing benefit
fraud investigation work. Where further action is required or recommended,
this is highlighted in the report and appendices and included in the
recommendations for the Corporate Committee.

1.2 In addition, the report provides details of the work the Council’s Human
Resources business unit has undertaken in Supporting disciplinary action
taken across all departments by respective Council managers.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable

Page 1 of 8



Page 42

Haringey i
3. Recommendations

3.1 The Corporate Committee is recommended to note the audit coverage and
counter-fraud work completed during the second quarter, 2011/12.

3.2 That the Corporate Committee reviews the management responses
received for those audit recommendations not fully implemented; and
confirms that the managers’ actions taken during the second quarter to
address the outstanding recommendations are appropriate.

4. Other options considered
4.1 Not applicable.
5. Background information

5.1The internal audit service and counter-fraud teams make a significant
contribution to ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
throughout the Council. This report looks at the work undertaken in the
quarter ending 30 September 2011 and focuses on:

e Progress by Deloitte and Touche on internal audit coverage relative to
the approved internal audit plan, including the number of audit reports
issued and finalised;

 Progress in implementing outstanding internal audit recommendations
with particular attention given to priority 1 recommendations;

» Detalils of pro-active and reactive investigative work undertaken relating
to fraud and/or irregularities including those within the remit of the
Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team; and

o Information in respect of disciplinary action taken by managers across all
departments of the Council during the quarter.

5.2 The information in this report has been complied from information held
within the Audit & Risk Management business unit and from records held by
Deloitte and Touche and the Council’s corporate Human Resources
business unit.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche is part of the five year contract which
was awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in compliance with
FU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are contained
and managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

6.2 The annual income recovery target for the HB Fraud Team is £250Kk.
Although the actual recovery of overpaid benefits for the second quarter

paie 2 of 8



Page 43

Haringey: . .
was only £20.3k, this represents 76.6% of the total overpayments
identified. At the mid-year position the overpayments recovered is 38% of
the overall annual target and no issues are currently identified which will
prevent the annual recovery target from being achieved.

6.3 The financial benefits to the Council of the work completed during the
second quarter as part of the ongoing tenancy fraud project will be realised
as properties are recovered and returned to the Council’s portfolio. The
Audit Commission estimate that the costs of fraudulent tenancies and
unauthorised sub-letting equate to £18k per annum per property, therefore
it is pleasing to note that outcomes from the project are beginning to
happen with two properties already recovered.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 The Acting Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of
this report, and advises that there are no direct legal implications arising out
of the report.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all
areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of the
community. The report also contains details of how fraud investigation work
is undertaken and pro-active fraud projects are managed. Improvements in
managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council
provides to all sections of the community.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1 Not applicable.
10. Policy Implications
10.1 There are no direct implications for the Council’s existing policies, priorities
and strategies. However, reducing the opportunity for fraud to take place in
the first place, and taking appropriate action to detect and investigate
identified fraud will assist the Council to use its available resources more
effectively.
11. Use of Appendices
11.1 Appendix A - Deloitte and Touche Progress report

Appendix B - In-house Team — investigations into financial irregularities
Appendix C - Council-wide disciplinary information

Page 3 of 8



Page 44

Haringey ! -
12. Performance Management Information

12.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, key
local performance targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk
Management. These form part of Corporate Resources’ reporting
processes, but are detailed below for information. Table 1 below shows the
targets for each key area monitored in 201 1/12 and gives a breakdown
between the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1

Pl Performance Indicator 2"! Quarter Year to Target

Ref. date

1 Audit work — Days Completed 85% 38% 95%
vs. Planned programme

2 Priority 1 recommendations 100% 92% 95%
implemented at follow up

3 Benefit fraud cases completed 7 16 50
and accepted for prosecution

4 Overpayments recovered £20.3k £94 .3k £250k
(including POCA and
confiscation awards)

13. Internal Audit work — Deloitte and Touche contract

13.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the second quarter of 2011/12 to date is
detailed at Appendix A. Deloitte and Touche planned to deliver 250 days of the
2011/12 annual audit plan (1000 days) during the second quarter. Deloitte and
Touche actually delivered 212.5 days audit work during the quarter, which is
85% of the planned work. To date, 38% (383.25 days) of the annual planned
programme of 1000 days has been completed as at 30 September 2011. This is
below the planned target of 50%, but Deloitte and Touche are only paid on the
completion of each project and it is expected that the annual target of 95% will
be achieved. Ongoing monthly contract monitoring reviews ensure that
performance levels are kept under review.

13.2 Members of the Corporate Committee receive detailed summaries of all
projects for which a final report has been issued on a monthly basis to allow for
any issues to be considered in a timely manner. Appendix A provides a list of all
final reports which have been issued during the quarter, together with detailed
summaries of the findings and recommendations of those reports which
received a ‘limited’ assurance rating.

13.3 Appendix A also provides detailed summaries of all recommendations which
were previously recorded as outstanding at the time of the follow up audit
work. Members have been monitoring the progress and implementation of
these at the previous Audit Committee meetings to ensure that managers were



Page 45

Haringey . .

taking appropriate action to address outstanding recommendations. Only four
recommendations from prior years remain outstanding: 2005/06 — one Priority 2
recommendation remains partly implemented; 2009/10 - two Priority 2
recommendations remain partly implemented. Work is ongoing to address
these and internal audit is satisfied that managers’ actions are appropriate to
manage these lower priority risks facing the Council. Internal Audit will continue
to monitor implementation of recommendations to ensure appropriate actions
are taken to mitigate identified risks.

13.4 A summary of all follow up audit projects for 2010/11 work which have been

undertaken is also included in Appendix A (pages 12-13). We have followed up
on 104 recommendations to date and found that 88 have been implemented, 6
are no longer applicable, five are in progress, and five recommendations had
not reached their due date. Overall, a compliance rate of 95% has been
achieved for the second quarter and 100% in relation to Priority 1
recommendations. One Priority 1 recommendation followed up to date, where
the deadline for implementation has passed, remained partly implemented and
details of this are contained in Appendix A (page 16).

13.5 In conjunction with the Director of Corporate Resources, Directors are kept

141

advised of the outstanding recommendations and any actions required to
ensure that implementation of recommendations is achieved. From 2008/09
onwards, the implementation of Priority 1 recommendations has been included
in the performance reporting requirements for all departments. During this
quarter, Internal Audit are satisfied that managers have been taking appropriate
action to address the issues raised in the original recommendations prior to
2010/11.

14. In-house Team - Fraud investigation/Pro-active work

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all
cases that fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation
Team and the Council’s Information Security Policy. Appendix B details the
individual cases that were completed by the In-house Team to date in 2011/12
and any which were brought forward from 2010/1 1, relating to Council
employees. The listing at Appendix B also includes any referrals made using
the Council’s whistle blowing policy which were investigated by Internal Audit.
During the second quarter, two whistle blowing referrals were made.

14.2 Within the second quarter, twenty eight cases were referred to Internal Audit for

investigation, including nine relating to permanent and temporary employees.
Seven cases were completed during the quarter involving Council employees.
This included cases brought forward from 2010/11. Internal Audit work closely
with officers from personnel and the service involved to ensure that the
investigation is completed as quickly as possible.

Page 5 of 8



Page 46

Haringey ' . .0

14.3 The section has been working with Homes for Haringey and the Strategic and
Community Housing Service to develop an approach to target and investigate
housing and tenancy fraud. The Audit Commission estimate that each
fraudulent tenancy costs councils an estimated £18k in temporary
accommodation and other associated costs. Fraud awareness briefing
sessions have been provided to all relevant housing and Homes for Haringey
staff (including referral and assessment teams, tenancy management officers,
concierge and operations/repairs teams). An agreed referral and investigation
process is in place for all suspected cases of tenancy fraud and the corporate
team work closely with all officers in housing, legal services and Homes for
Haringey to investigate cases.

14.4 Since the fraud awareness training sessions have been run, individual staff
members have made referrals relating to potential tenancy fraud. During the
first two quarters of 2011/12, 46 referrals have been made, including 26 made
by housing and Homes for Haringey officers.

14.5 Two properties have been recovered and the keys returned, so the tenancies
can be allocated to tenants in accordance with the Council’'s lettings policy.
Re-possession action is being taken in 9 cases, with Notices Seeking
Possession either served or prepared for serving. Interviews Under Caution
have been completed in 5 further cases with a view to re-possession and
prosecution, if the evidence supports this.

14.6 Investigations are ongoing in 21 cases, with another 6 cases awaiting risk
assessment and initial review. Only 2 cases which have been referred to date in
2011/12 resulted in no further action being taken. Feedback on the outcomes
of cases is provided to housing and Homes for Haringey staff to show the
positive outcomes resulting from their referrals.

14.7 The Corporate Anti-Fraud Team will now be working with Strategic and
Community Housing Services to develop the tenancy fraud project with key
Registered Social Landlords.

15. Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation

15.1 During the second quarter, the HB Fraud team completed investigations on
seven benefit fraud cases and submitted these to Legal Services for
prosecution at crown court. In the same period, a further two investigations into
benefit fraud cases were completed and lower sanctions (cautions) are waiting
to be applied as the subjects’ addresses are waiting to be confirmed.

15.2 In the second quarter, four cases were heard at crown court, including three
cases which were prepared and submitted for prosecution during the same
quarter. All four prosecution cases found in favour of the Council. All four cases
identified that an overpayment had been fraudulently obtained by the

-
o
=
1t
[
=n
o



Page 47

Haringey ...

claimants. The total overpayment identified for the four cases was £26.5k, of
which £20.3k (76.6%) has already been recovered. Overpayment plans are in
place to recover the remaining amounts. The team will be working with the HB
recovery team and Legal Services going forward to ensure that all options for
recovery are considered when fraud has been proven.

15.3 The HB Fraud Team has been working towards completing prosecution cases

16.1

for a number of complex fraud cases during the second quarter and it is
expected that these will contribute substantially to the overall annual targets
when the cases are finalised.

16. National Fraud Initiative

During the second quarter of 2011/12, the team has been continuing their
investigations into the potential data matches provided to the Council as part of
the statutory National Fraud Initiative (NFI) exercise. Work has been undertaken
to investigate pension payments, blue badges, housing benefits, right to buy
and housing tenants.

16.2 The Corporate Anti-fraud Team has completed their investigations into potential

fraud in relation to blue badges issued by Haringey Council (an original 230
potential matches). The Corporate Anti-fraud Team worked in conjunction with
the Concessionary Travel Team to identify where blue badges which were no
longer eligible/required had already been returned by badge holders or their
families. The team wrote to all addresses where the blue badge was showing
as no longer required/eligible and requesting that it be returned to the Council.
Subsequently, the team undertook a programme of planned visits to addresses
where no response was received and, in total, successfully recovered 50 blue
badges. All matches in this area have now been investigated and outstanding
issues resolved.

16.3 In addition, the team has completed the investigations into potential matches

16.4

16.5

for pensions data. Only one case, out of an original 227 potential matches,
remains outstanding, and this has been referred to the Pensions team for
further investigation. All other matches have been cleared as not fraudulent

Work has started on the 60 data matches for cases which indicate a potential
fraud in Right to Buy. This work will be completed during the third quarter.
Officers from Housing Services have been completing an initial review of the
potential data matches for housing tenants during the second quarter. The
Corporate Anti-fraud team will be working with housing officers to investigate
those matches which indicate potential fraud on tenancies.

The Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team has started work on
investigating the potential data matches (a total of 6,843 potential data

Page 7 of 8



Page 48

Haringey . ... .
matches, with 3,758 higher risk matches) for a range of housing benefit areas.
The latest position is as follows:

 Housing benefits to payroll data, where the individual is employed by
Haringey: matches have been completed and seven cases are being
followed up;

« Housing benefits to pensions data, where the individual is receiving a
pension from Haringey: matches have been completed and six cases are
being followed up; and

« Housing benefits to payroll data, where the individual is employed by
another organisation: matches have been completed and four cases are
currently being prepared for prosecution.

17. Council-wide disciplinary statistics

17.1 Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken
in the second quarter of 2011/12. The data is taken from SAP and the
information has been provided by the Council’s Human Resources business
unit in line with Council statistics reported elsewhere.

17.2 During quarter two, the number of disciplinary cases investigated was 39, with
21 remaining ‘open’ at the end of the quarter. The average length of time taken
to resolve disciplinary cases in quarter two was 80 days, which represents a
decrease of 16 days compared to the first quarter of 2011/12, and is the lowest
average over the previous four quarters.

Page 3 of 8



Page 49

V XIANdddV

ITOT 1290100
PYTHPNY [BUIOIU] 10309G DT[qNd SYINO T, 29 aNIO[R(]

Ad3uriey jo ySnouog uopuo|
CLOT/1I107

J10day 1pny [ewrdjuy 7 193aeng)
PNy JerIdiuy



Page 50

Z1/1107 Modoy 7 183eng) — 1pny [euraiu] A95ULIEH JO YSN0I0g UOpuoy

QU e %ﬁjnﬁmCOQmwﬁ J0 TUSTURIRIS
[ e 11/0102 msoﬁmﬁﬁuéoomm wﬂ%ﬁﬁmuso _ ﬁomwm mw@p@@p& pareIa ]
TR SIOM PNV | 1/0107 — 21981 QD MOTI0A
[ e 01/600T SUOLEPUSIWIOINY wﬁ%ﬁmumpzo _ ﬁommm mm@wwo.wm pafie1a(
( T 90/S00T SUONEPUSWILIOINY JO coﬁmﬁuowﬁoaﬁﬁﬁ —110day] sse1do1g pafieie(
0 m@ﬁ@ggsm @mﬁmwmg pue mm@pwog& ﬁﬁﬁﬁ{
ﬁ ................................................................................................................................................................. %Hmd(ﬂ\ﬁ:ﬂm ®>C§O®Nm
aged

Shicitinig)

V XIANAdd Y Z1/1107 THOdTY LIANV ATHALIVAO - LIANV TYNYALNI ALLIOTAd



Page 51

1 28eg T1/110Z Moday] 7 10110 — 11pny Tty A9Sutrer] jo ySnorog UOpuo]
"CI/110T [PSUNO)) [BUIDIXT JO 9S[) e
PUB Z1/110T @oiueiens) KoSuLeyy e
“T1/110T 10enuo)) juawoSeueyy INOSIY SAVH o
“TI/TT0T 1891 A10A000% 1038BSI(] ATIOMI »
“T1/110T [01u0) 29 JuswnFeueyy FO01S — SAVIAIG AIRIQU] e
“T1/T10T Aerdsiq 7 Ao - 50014108 Supyeg o
-T1/110T uoneonddy SINHO o
“C1/1107 owweISorg Aduepunpay Arejunyo A o
“T1/110T dwayos Sunjuoy ojealld — suondQ Suisnoy e
“T1/010T $991A198 [01U00) supping e
‘11/0107 (uonepowrwioooy Areiodun I 103) sanzadord Sq poSeuey Joriddng o

:pansst syrodoy [eurg — 71/1107 T J3rren() jo Areurun S/SIYSYSIH Loy

SUOBEPUILIIOdaT 2010eId 159q 10/pUE STopew Jourwt - ¢ Q1410149
UONOE JUSWOTLURW [E00] JOJ SUOHEPUIWIWIONAT JOYI0 - z Qriorig
JUSWSTRUBUI IOTUS JO UOTIUAYIE JY} 10] SANSS] Iofewr - 7 Quony

'$9110591e0 FUIMO[[0 a1} 0} SUIP100o® pasnrroud sre SUOTIBPUSUIIIODAL INO “IOPUIUIOI & S

IPIUWO] 1PNy a1y 01 partodar pue pansst st 1odai [euy oy owm Y3 £q s1001J0 T10Un0)) Aq poruswarduut

Us0q dAey Apeale Aew SUOLRPUSIUINOODI puE 9Ipne oyl jo SW oy Je SwWoIsks oyl Jo snyels oyl 109301 SO[qE) payoene oy

‘s110dax
Npne [eUly [enpIAIPUL 93U} Ul pafrelap A[ny oI ‘wonerdwos 103 QUI[PBAP Y} pUE I3013J0 9[qIsuodsar oyl Surpnjout ‘SUONBPULUWILIODT
91} SSAIPPE 0] SUONOE SIS "PI2Ife usaq aAry podor ST} UM pajySysiy $3SSOUNBIM [OIIUOD AUR SSAIPPR 0] SUOTIBPUSUITIONAT
[TV "pensst Suraq 11odax [eury oy} 03 Joud passnosip a1 sondsip Aue pue ‘SI901J0 [1oUno)) UlIm poaide aIe SUOTEPUSUTIONT ||y

‘1sanbax
uodn sioder 31pne 1no Jo sordos [y yim papraoid 94 OS[E [[IM 9UIWWO)) Y} JO SIOQUIDJA “2onTuro)) a1erodion oY} JO SIoqUIDIA
03 sIseq A[qjuow € uo papiaoid SI YOIYM UOHBULIOJUT AIBWIWNS Y 1YRT0) smelp odar oy, “uoneULIOyUT 10} pepnpout st sgurpuy
JIPIE SOUBINSSE PO 313 JO AIBUIUNS PI[IRIOP AIOUWL  “SIPAL [BUINIUL INO JO 9SIN0d 9y} FULMP PAYIUIPI UG SABY YOTYM [1ounoy)
oy} pue syuountedap [enpiatpur Suroey sysu KoY oty WSIYSIY 01 paudisop osfe st 110dol ST} JO JeWI0] Y], "owl) IOAO padeuswn
SUI2q SIB SYSLI MOY UO UOHBULIOJUL Y)IM SIOQUISIA opraoid [1m yorym SIom swaysks Aoy 10§ [oaen JO UonoaIIp Ay Jo uoHROTpUI
Ue SOAIS PUE 0URINSSE [ELUEISANS 1O [[N] POAIDE OABY YOIYM Seale 9SO} U0 uoneunojut soptaoid 1oder oy oFers [eUl] 1B Mou
oIe yomym sutodal [[e jo sqiesep Surpnjour 1ea4 eoueuy 71/ 10T 243 10 eopruwio) srerodor) ay 01 odax 1artenb puooas mo SISy,

uonINpo.IIy

Arewrung 9ARPNIAXHY

V XIANAddV CI/TT0T LIOdHY LIV ATIALAVAO - LIaNV TVNYAINI ALLIOTHA



7 °%ed Z1/1107 wodey 7 1euen() — pny [eureiu] L9FUleH Jo [Snoiog UopuoT]

(9%0) 0 — porueudwl 10N e

pue {(249) 9 —o1qeotjdde 1SUO[ ON e

{(%S) ¢ — uono[duiod 10y aUP ION @

{(94S) ¢ — parmoumddut Apeg e

‘(% tS) 88 — parupwodw] e
'SMO[[O] SB 9IE SI0OM INO JO SINSAL 3y} PUB [[/Q[OT U PISIEI SUOTBPUIUIOIAT £ dn poMOT[O] 2ABY 2M 218D O],
TI/0107

5501} SSaIpPe 01 SUIOSUO ST IoM FUIPULISINO UIBLWAT SUONEPUSTUTIODT T AJLIOL OM],
01/6007

‘ST SSOIPPE 01 SUIOTUO ST YIOM (SUIPULISINO SUTEUIDI UOHEPUSUIUOII T Auoug auQ
90/€00¢C

SMOT[O0] S aIe JIom dn-mo[[o] IO JO SHNSI 3y |
SUOTIEPUSTIUI0IIY SIBIX JOLIJ JO €[} MOJ[CH

Page 52

7 19118NQ) UL PAYISIA UAQ SABY YOI SJOOYDS SPN[OUL 10U SA0P ISI[ 9A0qR YL

(s001ATeS Suisnoy Ajrununmo))) 1pny suonedtiddy 5DO4S  »

pue ‘Furaue]d 20B]J PUB SUOISSIWUPY [00U2S =

‘s Suniied 2YIQ PUE SUSPISY — SAOIAIOS FUDR]  ~

‘(yrpne JUSWYSI[qRIST NPV ) 20U ALD USABH 24, =

‘(11pne JueWYSTIeISH NPY) 1) Ae( oSurin oYy o

‘(1IPNE JUSWYSTIQRIST SA[IWE,] 2 UAIP[IYD) SWOH UDIP[IYD) PLoy snoddony e

‘(}IpNE JUSTIYSTQRIST SAI[IUIR 29 USIP[IYD) ST A[IUIR,] PBOY AISWR[SEH o

‘(1Ipne JUSWIYSTQRISH SIT[IUIR 29 USIP[ID) SWOH § UWRIPIYD e AUl e

:s11pne JuIMO[[0F Y1 JOJ PINSST Ud3q SALY s1r0dal jyeI(] "SUPNER [BNPIAIPUL
10] 91ep Heis pur 2dods Yy Suraaife 0} SISl UM JIoM Suruue[d IO PYILIS 9ABY oM “UR[J JIPNY [BUIRIU] C[/TT0T 93 3O wed sv
ur[d MPNV [BUIU] Z1/T 10T 10 ATDAIR(

V XIANAddV Z1/1107 L4OdTd L1dNV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNYAINI ZLLIO T3]



¢ 98eqg T1/1107 Moday 7 1e1end) — 11pty [euIom] KaBuurey jo ySnotog uopuo
[ 0 0 V/N [enueIsqns | 11/60/97 | 110T Isndny [9SUNoy) [eUIAIX JO 25 |
0 0 0 V/N [enuelsqns | 11/60/07 | 110 isn3ny s9ueIEND ASSULIRH
0 7 1 > [enueisqns | 11/60/+41 110Z Isnsny [0UOD PUE JUSWATLUBIA YO0IS — SAOTAISS AIRII]
0 % 4 V/N Py 11/60/60 A 110T Afnf JUSWIATBUBTA 001083y SAVH
4 S 0 V/N fenuelsqas | 11/60/20 [TOT sunf (SIpPoN speaNy) uoneonddy SINHO
3 [ 0 V/N [enuelsqas | 11/60/10 1T0C sunf 191 9 dTIOMI
I S ¢ V/N panwry | 11/80/4¢C 110g dunf Aerdsiq % Aed — s201AI0S SUDYIR
0 [ 0 V/N fenuelsqns | 11/80/L1 [10¢ auny SWWBIF0IJ AOUEpPUNpPaY AIeIun[oA
0 ! 0 V/N fenuelsqns | 11/80/L1 110z Ang AWRYDS FUNUNY AeAlld — suond( FuIsnoy
CL/110T
muu 0 S [ V/N fenuelsqns | 11/60/0¢ 010C ATnf S§IAIDS [oNU0) SuIp[ing
n%u (uonepowrosoy Arerodwa ] 107)
anu + S 0 V/N fenueisqns | 11/L0/S0O 1107 (udy sonadord Furseay 101005 9jeALJ PaSeuR]y Iorddng
TL/016T
€ (A L
(OToag) - | paea yo | Uk spL Npny
STONEPUIWO0INY | WONIAII( 7| uo,&,«ﬁs
Jo _quuny ; ;
.COS@QEO%QM

SIRQUISJAL 10] paptaold os[e oI STUIRI SOUBINSSE ,[BNURISQNS, 10 [N, SAI002I 10U Op UOIYM SUPNE [[E JO SOLIBWIWNS PA[IBIoC]

Aq payuoweidun usaq aAeYy Apeaile ABW SUONEPUSUIUIONDI AT} JoY] PAJOU q ISOUI I] pls

AP0 JPNY 2y 0} paptodar pue pansst st 11odai [euly oy own oy £q SISO1JO [10UNO))

PO Sy} JO OWT 211 I SWDISAS A1) JO SNIBIS oY

puE “IeaA [BIOURUL [[/010T U1 01 9IR[DI OM] UDIYM JO Z1/[110T JO OM . I9)IeNQ) Ul pasIBuUY S}IPNE JU3 N0 S19S A[qe] Sumorjor ay .

V XIANHAddV

SALIRWIWNG PI[IR]d(] PUE $SAI301J JIpny

CI/T10T LYOdTY 11dNV ATHALAVAO - LIANY TYNMAINI ALLIOTId



Page 54

y a8eg Z1/1107 Woday 7 @uend) — Ipny [euialy] Kaguuey Jo ySnolog uopuoy]
0 9 S pajiiul] 11/60/0¢ 110T AInf 10010 ATeWiLL] 21BSUSIH |
[ S [4 [enuelsqny 11/80/10 110T A1nf [00Y0S AIeTULL] pBatUS[IRg
[ [l [ [enuelsqnys 11/L0/8C 110T 2unf [00U0S ATRWILJ 9RPLIAI0D)
I 14 14 payry 11/L0/TC 110T Ae]N anua)) URIP[IY)) 29 [00Y0S duImnoqsdue) |
0 9 ! fenuelsqny 11/L0/1¢ 10T ounf 1004028 YSIH 2DISPOO AN
[ 9 3 [enuelsqny 11/L0/¢1 110T AeN [00U0S ATBUILL] S[IIqUAOC]
£ (4 1
(KHuorg) PAYT . 3@@_ upny. R o | S . v 100§
STOIEPUIWUI0INY UBINSSY jrodoy - .
Jo Jroquuny
:pansst w2aq sey 1odar feuy
© yorym 10§ ppne A1qoid e paja[duod pue djep 03 S|O0YoS SUIMO[[0] U} PAYISIA dARY 9 Ur[d Ipny [BWIOIU] T/]1 10T AW JO ped sy
V XIONHddV Z1/1107 LHOdTY LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANY TYNJILNI ALLIOT3d



Page 55

G aded

T1/1107 woday] 7 111eny) — 1pny rewrauy AoSuireyy jo ysnolog uopuoy

pajrualy

[ Ayonid om) pastel oAy om YIom JIpne Ino Joynsare sy
"PIMIIADI FUIaq VS PUe 110day] uonas[[o)) yse)
9} US9MIAQ SUONBI[IOUO0AI JO JOUSPIAD OU SBM OIS
pue 110z AeN
81 90uTIs pajadiiod Usaq J0U JABY SIOYOLL JIPNY dY) pue
sioday] uonds[I0) YSBD oY) USOMIAq UOHBI[IOU0III O] e
‘Suryueq Jo sSaUI[AWN Y} UO PIJONPUOD I8 YOO ON e
-aoueur arerodio) Aq paonpoid o[npayds uonod[[0))
awoou] 2y} 03 paredwod 10u axe (sppodoy uonoA[[0)) Yse)
s.100enu0) Ayy 1od se) pandud soumorBW JO IS YL e
1981010%0 2IN1ONSAI A} FUIMO[[O]
sjuawarmbar Surodar Jo mataal € 0} anp ‘1007 YOIRN
2ouls paonpord Usaq jou oAey supodor juowoSeuRjy e
-1010B.[U0)) AU} Yim sSuneawr Surmoroy paonpod
sieme jou aIe suejd uonoe pue somurt  Jupodjy e
‘parojuows jou
SI doururIofiad § 1010B0U0D O} JBY) PIULIOJUI SI0M OM
pue SOJIAIDS SUINIR] UIYIIM O]QER[IBAR JOU ST DI SOOIAIOS
ANINOag 10BNUOD YIM 10BNU0D paudis ay) Jo Adoo Ve
‘S901AI0G BuryIed 0] JUAS ST
SUIORW OB WO PIJOI[[00 YsBO SMOYS pue I0}0B0UO))
oyy Aq poonpoid st yorym ‘wodey uUONIS[[O) YsE) Ve
‘ssoooid
UOHBI[IOUOOAT QWIOJUT 9Y] SAILII[IOB] YOIYM ‘QUIYORW oY)
Aq uaye) useq sey Asuowl yonw moy Jurmouys auryorw
Aerdsiq 2 Aed yoeo woy poleousd SI 1PYON NpNE Uy e
“MO[aq pa[relep are sFurpuly A9y oY) JO QWS
S 1 $9A1309[q0 W0ISAS 9y Jo dwos nd Yorgm ‘Sassatyeom

§SQ00IJ UOUBI[IOUCOIY o
sunjueg e

UOTOD[[0)) QUIOOU] »
SJUSWIFURLIY JUSWOTRURIA e
SULIOIIUOIA] J0BIUO)) o
S2INPADOIJ PUR SAN[OJ o

:seaIp
BUIMO[[0] AT} JOA0D 0} UONELIOPUN SBM JIOM 1PNy

[4VAR11V4

Leydsig
Aed — sa01A12G Supprvg

oTe 210} ‘wasAs punos AJ[eolseq B ST QI0Y) O

Vid

ANueINSSY

adoog

BT JIpOY

M

NURINSSY PIITWIT YIM 7 I3]0

nQ supmp panssy spr0doy [eury

V XIONAddV CI/IT0T LHOdM LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANY TYNUAINT JLLIOTAC



Page 56

9 a8eq Z1/110Z Hoday] 7 1ouren() — 1Ipny [BUIatu] AQBULIBH JO (SnoIog uopuo’y

ST SuD[uEq JeY] dINSUd 0} ‘payueq PUB PIAOJ[[0D dIe
SOTUOW SAJBP A} UO JOIYD B OPN[OUL 0} PAPUSIXS 9q P[NOYS
JVS 01 1odor uonds[o) Yse) Y} JO UONEI[IOUOIDI Y], e
-gouruL] 91e10d10) YIM padIde
aq 01 speau ¥y siyy jo uondpdwod 103 Afiqisuodsal
o], 'SUONIPP® SUIYIBUI MU JO JUNODOE 93e} 01 pajepdn se
‘9[NPAYS UOTA[[0)) AWooU] ) Isurede payooyd Ajre[nsal
aq pnoys (spoday uonoo[[o) yse) Ay 1od) pi SIOIAILS
Lmooag joenuo) Aq pondwe soumyoew JO ISI OYL e
“SULIOJTUOW PUB MOTAAI DATI0S]]D 10] MO[[E PInoys siodal
oy w Aedsig 2 Aed JO 98BI0A0D ‘arqissod se uoos
SB JJ1S TURAS[AI [[B 0} PAILOIUNUIIOD PUE ‘JUSUSTEURW Aq
pooiSe pue pasifeutioj aq pnoys ‘Aeidsiq % Aed opnjoul
oM ‘sedlAldg  Supjied 10} SjuLWAINbaI Sunzodoy e
‘epuofe Funeow
aU)} UO W)l SUIPUEIS B SB pOpn[oul oq pinoys pue ‘sjurestu
juonbasqns e poIoyUOW 2q PINOYS SUOIOE  parmbor
sureSe ssoxo1g ‘parmbor amym ‘padofeadp 2q pInoys
‘sourppeep pue saniiqisuodser wim ‘sueld wonoe pue
pojnUII 2q POYS J010BNUOD Y} YHA PIaY STULIW [[V e
'SMO[[O] SE I SUOTEPUSUIOdAT 7 AJLIOL Y],

'S19Y01], 1IPNY UM sHoday
UOTOO[0)) YSBD) JO UONEIUOdaL dy} SuIpnpoul ‘s¥se)
Koy Funardwod 107 ajqisuodsar ore oym JJels judsqe I0j
12400 op1a01d 0} OpEI 9q PINOYS STUSWATULLIE JANBUINY e
“PY] SPOTAIDG AJLINOAS 10BIIUO)) YILM JOBIUOD
oy} J0 Adoo pouSis ® uLlqo PIROYS SIIAIS Sujred e
:SMO[[O] SB I8 SUOTRPUSUIIOdaI | AJLIOL YL

“JUSTIUOIIAUS [01JU0D 3]}
Suraoxdwl ul SISSE PNOYS YOTYA UOTBPUSUIIOIL ¢ Kuoud

JOURINSSY

SUO PUE SUONEPUITUWIOdAL T AJOLd 9AY ‘SUONPPUSUILIIOODT

sSmpuy Aoysmerg |

- adoag

BAIB JIPNY

V XIANAdd Y

ZU/1107 LIOdTH L1ANV ATIALIVAO - LIANY TYNIIINI ALLIOTIA



Page 57

[ 98eg T1/1107 1oday 7 1ouen)) — 1ipny [ewIaIU] AoBuLIel] jo yanorog uopuo-y

"A188S900U 219yM pajepdn
pue (£s1[0d [DUNOY) U saFuLYD dIe 2I0Y) S1OYM ‘Apuanbay
alouwl 10) A[[ENUUE  POMIIARI ¢ PINOYS SOINPIVOI] e

'SMOI[[0J SB ST UOIJEPUSWILIODRT ¢ AJLIOLL oY,

"Tamataal pue 1aredeid o yloq
Aq 130 paudis pue parep ‘pajusWNOOp 9q pnoys Jv's pue
s10doy uondS[[0) YSED Y} UIIMIS] UOTIRI[IOU0IAI YL e

‘ddurur] 91e10dio)) yim pasiSe
9q 01 SPadU Y3 ST} Jo uonadwos 10§ Apiqisuodsar oy,

S

dUBINSSY

'SUONESI[qO [EN10BNUOS Yitm dull ur Apduroxd pajordwoo

mwﬁcﬁhmex\mawam o adoog voR NIpnY

V XIANAddV CI/TT0T LYOd A LIANV ATIALIAVAO - LIANY TYNYALINI JLLIOTIA



Page 58

g 28ed

Z1/1107 Hoday 7 101end) — 1pny [pueiu] ASFULILH JO YSnoIog uopuo]

v se JJeIs Aouose Jo (F1J) woleamba own [y [€10} o
apn[oul SPILda10ds ATqiuour wea], [N YH [Puno) YL
‘spr0do1 JuouaSeURW JO $19S 0OM] MITAAI 01 WIBd) YH Y3
107 SUTWMSUOD AW} 001 PAUWAP ST YOIYM JJB)S JUBAI[AI
ot 1sureSe szoqunu uonisod qof [[e yim 1odor ojeredas
v opraoid s00mosoy SAVH ‘UonIppe U] "UOnEULIOJUI
ol JO AoeInodoe oyl SUIAJLIOA UL SIMMOYJIP Pasnes
Sy samSy USPPIY UM OB[NULIO} A sydeid oy
Nq SHBYO 2117 J0J SUOSEAI PUB IOTAISS JO 3 uo] Surpnyour
worpuIojul juesd[ar sopiaoid jrodey SuIpedH UL
"TOAIS Seam TOTIBSLIOYINE [BULIO) 310Joq
SIOM PI3IEIS SIONIOM ADUDTE A1) SUOISBIO0 OMIUQ O
pue ‘poredod
10U Sem ISI[MOYS B Jeyl SUIMOYS pasodoid
QI0M  SOIBPIPUBD (O ‘UOISBOO0 Joyuny v uQ o ©
‘90e1d 00 MOTAIdIUT OU
10A2MOY [Iouno)) o 0} pasodoid so1epIpuBd dAY
pUE PaI[NSU0) 219 SAWOUITE AN ‘UOISLIO0 AUO UG O
:8uImor]oJ
U} PAUTIUAPI S[1EIP SIAIoM AoUeSe ¢ JO UOTBUIIEXH
‘paIUoWNOOP AJ[RUIIO) 10U I8 353}
mq ‘ooe[d oy} SSUNAW JORIUOO JBY) PIULIOTUT I9M I
‘0007 03 3oBQq Fuliep SosBd 0M] M ‘syjuotu
71 JO SSOOXO Ul 90IAIdS JO [ITuol ® pey jjess Koua3e
1B JO %CH 1eUl sMoUs [107 A»JA 103 Hoday] sulpeaH 2Y4L
‘paaISe A[RULIO]
ueeq jou pey 31 ‘1107 [udy Ul popusixs sem [OUNOH

o} puB oNUL)) 20IN0SAY SAVH USIMISQ OBNUOCD YL e
:MO[q PA[IBIAP 21 STUIPUL} A9 9} JO SWOS
YS1I 18 $9AT09[qO S Juat(d oy jnd

“UOUBULIOJU] 1UOUOTBUBIA o

pue $3¥097)
juwounuioddy e

YO Juipnpul  sdgeppuey  Jo
‘sjuotueITnbayy o]0y PuR PRON JO UOTBIINUP] »
‘SAVH O11uawie o

‘SULIOIUOIA 10BIUOD »

‘uonjerdwio)) PRIUOD) e

:seale

/et

12RUCD
JURUIAB R IBIA]

pajrury 0} SB [oNS a1 S[OIU0D [BUIANUL JO WIAISAS A} UL SISSAUNBI AN SurmOo[[oF 9} I9A0D 0} USYEHapUn seMm SI0M 1PNy IM0SIY SAVEH
duBINSSY sSurpuyy A3Y/smels adoog 2AIR APDY “

V XIANAddV

Z1/1107 LIOdAY L1ANV ATIALIVAO - LIANY TVYNIALNI ALLIOTEC



Page 59

6 98eg C1/1107 Hoday 7 1oueny) — 1pny [euraiuy AoSuLrey] jo ysnoiog uopuo|

‘pauredxs aq pnoys uoneLEA AUB pue ‘JeuLIoy
SUWES JY} Ul MITASI JUOWDTRURW 10] PapIa0Id uoneuLIOful
opn[oul 03 pouSie 8q pP[NOYS se0I0sAY  SAVH
Aq papraoid podey ourpra pur preosroog douereg oyl e
‘pepnyoul Iaquinu qof 9y} 1noyim
passaoord jou are suwoj oseaer AoudSe omsug o
pue Suodoy surjpeoy
oyl ot sioqunu uonrsod qof oy) ojerodioou; o
“odey] autpeay Ayiuowr oy uryym syders
oy Sunroddns uonewlIOyUT USPPIY oY) ISO[ISI] O
'890IN0SY SAVH 18y} 1sanbal pinoys wea) Wi oy e
‘osn
10y poaoxdde Suraq 01 Joud AnfIqeymns 103 [10unoy) ay) Aq
POMIIAIRIUL 9q pInoys sarouade Aq pasodoid sajeprpue) e
‘pajuawInoop
Al[ewio] 9q pnoys sSunedw JoBNU0D Aj1ourenb oy e
*SMO[[O] SB 91 SUONEPUSWIIO0DI 7 AJIOLL] Y[

'Teaoxdde 1 puooss e 105 judwoImbal oy
109p3a1 01 pajepdn pue PamalAdl oq PINOYS SYIUOUL [] JO
$S90X9 ur jyeis Louoge jo juounutodde oy 10§ SOIMPI0Ig e

pue pajesrunurtuod pue sonted yjoq £q
pouSIs ‘paaide A[[RULIO} 9q PINOYS UOISUNXD JOBIU0D AL e
'SMO[[OJ SB 31 SUOBPUSUIIONDI | AJLIOU oYL

JUAWTOIIAUS [01u09 91} Sutaoxduur

UL 1SISSE PINOYS YOTYA SUONEPUSWI0d2I 7 Ajuoud Inoy pue

1 A1rouid o) pastel 9ABY 9M JI0M JIPNB INO JO JNSAI B Sy
"SI JUSIRIIIP OABY SOIRIOI0AII(] Y} JO SWOS Pue
Hoday eurpeay oY) yolew jou pip samSy 9JeI0aII(]
A} “PAIMOH "SAVH Aq papiaoxd £1¢ jo [e101 podoy
SUI[PEAH 33 payojew ABAl 10J /€ JO [810} PIROAIOOS I

|
|
|
|
!
!
W
|
|
|
i

*
3
i
1

.
i
I
i
|
i
|

W
M
|
|
|

dURINSSY

[RUNOY oyl pue 91BI0AI(] Aq JIRIS B10} JO a8pjuoorad

sSupuy Aoysmeyg

adoag

BB JIpNY Q
|

V XIONAddV

CI/IT0T LYOdT L1ANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNYALINI ALLIOTHA



Page 60

0198ed

Z1/1107 Woday 7z 101end) — Ipny [RUII] KoSurrel Jo ysnoIog uopuo]

*AO ST YSLI [ENPISI JUSLIND Pate[oy “Iojerado
MOU o1 (IM $89001d 19jsuel], QINSIST Y} Ul dn payoid oq (114 anssI Y}
osTMISYIO "1107 09 210J0q QUWIdYDS ) JO K1oA1[0p Suromosar asyuoud
0} Supyeos oie ] oreIodio) SUOW MI) IxoU oy} UIHM pooadxa
s1 ssordoid pue pakelop UdQ SEY 1ofoxd oy “010J2q Se ST smiels Y[

[T0Z 4290120 § a1wpd) JudwaSvuny

SYIUOW - 1XOU SU} UIIIM pajuswalduut oq [ 31 ey}
pouued st 3 31 Juswa[duIl 0} [OUNOY oY) UM dn 195 wdaq sey 109foxd
Vv IOMIBW oU) U0 PAsea[el Uadq MOU SeY dIBMYOS oY1 JO 9°6 UOISIOA

107 4dy ¢ awpdp) JuawaSouvy
payuwowdpduy Apred

uro8uQ

"AUaLIND SINOTO]
pue suoSo] [NJSsA0ONS oI S BUIFFOL |
[fell Mpny Sunsixo oyl Ul pIpnpur g |
ued sydwone woTo] ok, A0y pur Ioyaym
JupeSusoaur 0] MdA B yhm  siapddns
z oIRMIJOS Q) 10BIUOD PINOYS 1USWRTRUBIA

i

WoISAS THAMASRURIA 2INSI] XAWOL

(Aymiqeureisng 2 29[ MON) SADIAYAS ALINAWINOD ¥ TAALTINO ‘SLINGV

E ‘wa&w,\wmowwim

UON BPUITHUO0IIN

EEh

90/S00T SUOIIEPUIUW T O0INY JO :oﬁﬁ:u,ﬁu_maw —310d3Y $S1304g PIIRId

V XIANAddY Z1/1102 THOd Y LIdNV ATYALIVAO - LIAOY TVNYILNI HLLIOTId



11 25eq T1/110Z Moday g 101ren) — 1pny [eusou] Aa3urre jo ySnosog uopuo

"Al[eo1yroads y1om J
O} UOISSIUWIUIOD 0) SEA [IOUNO)) 9} SSAUN ‘SIOWOISND oy} "SINONO0]
[[e woly puewap uo puadep pinom sup pue rerddns oy Aq osn pue sydwone ssaoow pasuoyneu) e

uonesnuod ayy uo Juspuadap st ssarFod ynq sorddns oy 0 PUB SUIo1SKS a1 01 550008 1957 » _
pauodal U9aq sey ansst oY ], '9A0qe patiodal se ST smyeys Ay,

I102/01/S 2mwpd)] yuamaSvuvpy

L]

‘SPIY 10 SA[1 WidIsASs 03 safuey)

:SeaIR JUIMOT]OF
O} 10] popIodal ST AJANOE walsks [[e Jer
aIsud dppy 01 JuouwSeurw UM palerdwoo |
9q poys syl ‘Sumnipne 10] poxmbar soiqe) |
oy saygwads Ajyeuonouny [ren jpne amsuo
01 pamatAar aq pinoys uoneorydde pringr pue
:pauswdduy Apaed | o10z 1snSny 1¢ Z UBIdY 9y} uo 90r[d UT [N JIpne JuLno oyl

‘pantuugns aq
[[I4 uonepUIWWOd0r oy} uodn paseq sanber juswaouryud
ue 9A0Qe S[OnuOod INdur o) YIM SB “TIAIMOY] "‘paInyuoo
ST dVT-1 9 Jeyy Aem o) 03 onp awy Sy} J8 pajuawdumn aq
01 JUI03 10U ST UOTIEPUSUITUIOIT ST} ey} paa1Se uodq sey 1]

(g

"A[reoy10ads srom
Y} UOISSIWUWIOD 0] SBA [IOUNO)) Y} SSAUN ‘SIOWOISND I19Y) .,,
[l woy puewap uo pudadop pnom sup pue sorddns oy Aq |
uonesnuoud oy uo judpuadap st ssaxfoid inq sorddns ot 03 |
pairodar uoaq sey anss1 Ay, "0A0qe pattodal e ST smie)s oy |

I102/91/s 2pdp 1wowaSvunyy ‘SuLo{-o pue uoneordde [erog Sutuuelg

o} 01 pPo[IU0aI ore doryIolul Sundoosy
UseD 9Uj BIA paAeoal sjuowiked (e 1ey) aInsus
PINOYS S "wWaIsAs siuowked-o AoSuLey
oy era uoneordde prmgr pue  aisqom |
A9SuLrey oy} uo sw0 -5 sB [jom sB ue[J1 pue
[BLOg SUTUUR[d 2] WOY PoIATadaI sjuomked
:pawswdduy Apaed | 10z 1snSny ¢ Z S[IOUOI2I 03 PAYSTQLISa 2q PNOYS dInpadord v

Page 61

"PaATedRI syuawiAed 10 PANOAYD ST JVS ‘Pate[duod
Aqrewroy  a1e suoneorydde ar0poq  Agoroym padoasp
U02q SBY PUNOIENIOM B WILISJUL 3} Ul “IOAOMOY ‘POAJOAUL
81500 01 onp Juesard je Iespoun st oep uonwIuoWRd]

I

I
NOILVOITddY TOULNOD ¥ ONINNVId - LIAQV LI
SHOANOSTY HLVIOJIOD

o maﬁm\mma.-mohm moaﬁwnuﬁacuuz S | Y

01/6002 maoumvnuﬁicuem 3

e

upueElsing «,«Hhmnom,wmﬁwoi pafedq

V XIANIddV CU/IT0T LIOdMA LIANY ATIALIVAO - LIAAV TYNYAINI JLLIOTAd



Page 62

71 9%eq Z1/1107 Hoday 7 Jeurend) — 1pny [ewelu] L9TULIRH JO 43noiog uopue’
Surppuey ysed — 291a12s spunj orqnd
0 0 0 0 0 b I ¢ b I ¢ [enueisqng |01 25M0021 ON)) SIUSWAIL[J PUE SUTTOISSTIIWO))
sampaooad
0 0 0 0 0 / I 9 L I 9 [enurIsqng Furpury yse)) — SOOIAIRS 2IB)) SUIALRYT
suonenNsay
0 0 0 0 0 9 0 S 9 0 ¢ [EUURISQRS |[BrOURTL] Yim 90uRI[dWo) — SadiALeg LIOGSTURI ],
0 0 0 0 0 z 0 0 z 0 0 renuesqnsg S[ONU0D A2y JO FUNSA — I9ISISAT 81T (ISY
0 0 0 0 [4 L 4 S 6 4 L [enuBIsqng SAOIAIRG SuLaE))
991A19S $.91d0a g SuUnox iy waIpryD
0 b 0 0 0 ¢ I Z L z ¢ TenueIsqns Q0BLIAU] STUAWARJ JV'S 01 1-YI0MAWEI ]
LI - §92an0s93 sqvaodio’y
0 0 0 0 [ S I ¢ 9 [ P [enuelsqng SIOATEAL JO 28
0 0 7 0 0 b 1 7 9 7 ¢ [enueisqng spaeo 1Ipaxd /aseyornd 21eiodiod JO 25N
(509D
0 0 0 0 0 b I ¢ . I ¢ TenueIsqng 1215180y sy senradoid o sofes /spesodsi(]
0 0 0 0 0 c I b S I . [enueisqns S[0NU0D A2y JO Sunsal — 1QISTFAL NS 17
QOTAIDG 10VIU0D)
0 0 0 0 0 9 0 c 9 0 ¢ [enueIsqng ouoydofa ], SINOF] JO Q) JO TUATUATEUBIA]
0 0 0 0 0 b 0 I b 0 I oI (JIpNE WAWBINO0LJ) SIELYNSUO)) JO SN
§22.1N083y arodioD)
Nﬁmcﬂwwmwﬂo anp mwwwwwhmm .QEH ) ; ) )
*$99 JON uy JION | VIN |I®0L] € | T [eloL | € | €
[ Ayrorig payuowopduny Ax0891e) ,
, PAYT
SUOTJEPUIWWOINY QURINSSY VARV 110V
N10A\ MIPNY TT/0T0T — d1qel d0 mofiod
V XIANAddV Z1/1107 LIOd Y LIANV ATHALIVAO - LIANY TVNIALNI ALUOTIA




Page 63

€1 95eg T1/1107 Hoday 7 1011end) — Ipny [eurajuy KaBurey jo ySnosog uopuo

SUOHEPUUIUIOIAI JO UONEIuewa[duw! paLiels aAey SI01J0 — parudwaldmy Apaeg

“USYE] U39q 10U Sy UONIL JANBUIA[E ‘PISSIIPPE Uaq 10U SBY UONBPUTIWIOAT 211 — pojusurardury jo)N]

S[SHE 91} SSAIPPE 01 USYE] UIAQ SBY UOTIOE SATBUINE IO “WAISAS oty Ul sogueyd 01 anp orqeordde I53UO] OU ST U0 BPUATIIIOAT A - V/N

"sasu0dsor 3o S[dWes B POYLIOA DAY 94\ SUOTIRPUSTIIIOIAI Jo ssex3oxd o1 woneoyII90-J108 YSN0Iyl Pa1edIpur sy SI1201770 — poruawarduny
I s § 0 9 88 4! 4 SO | IT | #01 | ST | LL | 71 %163,
TUQUIISBURIA 92UASqQY
0 0 0 0 I I 0 1 0 z 0 z o | [ehueisqng — sampaooxd a1e10diod qim aouryduioy
(808 115180y Ysryy) woneiad()
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 0 [ 0 I o | [Bruesqng pue juewafeuey A1ayes Ajrunumos) ALDD
0 0 z 0 0 + 0 b 0 9 0 9 o | [enuesqng SSQUINIMET JO SOIBOIJIIIS))
JUSWUONAUT Teq.I)
. 0 . 0 0 9 0 c M 9 0 ¢ (| renueisqng SIOIAIG Juapuadapu] pue UoLB[SUERL |
(Jye1s AouoSe
. 0 0 0 I N 0 [ 0 : 0 - o | renueisqng /Arerodura) Surpnyour) sesuadxy oakordwy
. 0 0 0 I I 0 : 0 z [ 1 p | [enueIsqng | SIOESIPU] QOUBWLIOLIS] [BUOTIEN] — AJIen() Ble(]
I 0 I 0 0 € I 7 0 ¥ [ z [ | [BBUEIsqng Kiayes 29 wreayy
SIANMIIXT JA1g)D)
. » 0 0 0 z 0 - 0 z 0 z o | renmmisang S10BIU0)) 212y ATRI[IdNUIO(]
0 0 0 0 0 £ 0 4 I £ 0 4 [ | [BHUBISqnS SIOIATRS NP BUIpIENGarRg
. . . 0 0 9 - b 0 9 - b o | renuesgng uodsuer] onuay) Avcy
0 . > 0 0 | 0 ~ 0 [ 0 I o | renumsgng SSTOIXF AT0A0DDY I91SBSI(] | JIOMAUIRL,]
(9080 IS5y
. I 0 0 0 : 0 - 0 ¢ 0 ¢ o | rEnuesqng |YSRY) seo1atag Sursnoy Anunwo)) 7y o18918MS
SIDTAIIS SUISNOFY 29 Synpy

Surpueisng | dnp mmou,mah& .&.:H | e
'§09Y - JON | - U JON [ V/N [[®IoL | € [4 I |I®I0L| € 4 I
I Ajrotg pajuamapduory K103918)
PAYT] 8 ek
SHONEPUII0IIY DUBINSSY ~ VIIV LIdnV
V XIANHIddV CI/TT0CT LYOd A 11OV ATHALIVAO - LIANY TYNYALLINI JLLIOTIA




Page 64

31 28ed

Z1/1107 Hodey 7 Jeuen() — 1pny [euwiajuf AoSULIEH JO SN0IOg tGOpuo]

[10C 4290120 [ € -2uljppa( pasiady

(Sunoe
1007]() SSUISNE JUAWAINI0IJ) TOYIO JuouRSeUR JUAWNOO(]
puR UONBULIOJU[/IS0TYJ(O 9oUBUL] o[qeARJ SIUNOMDY 1UMQ

'spIeo d SI901JO JUBAS(AL
JO UONEOOADI AU} M W 3q [[IM oouerduwoo-uou 1eaday]
‘s1op[oH 1°8png 01 JUSS S[IBWd PUB PIPIOIAI 3q [[IM IPIH
125 pie) Suiseyomd oyl {Im sourrjduoo-uou pue saff Ay}
UO USYELAPUN 2q [[IM JIPNE %G Auot v "A[[POTUOI}O[ S
a1} 21018 Pue s109Ys sSO[ AJIep [[ UEdS [[IM a1qehed s1UNOOY

"auIprap ABp

0] © 01 POPUSWIE 9 1021} [[IA PUB JABI] [ENUUE JUNOIOE O
aye) 0p s[Ie} s10ays Jo A[rep SuISLOYINE I0] SUIPLIP Aep ¢ oy
11/01/11 evepdn) juowgeue

-2ouerdwos w
-uou juaisisiod oSl 01 s1dFRURIN
JouBUL] 0] PANSST IDYMNY PUB SIAPIOY PILd
JUOLIND [[B 0} JUSS 2¢ PINOYS ISpuldl v

“posodui 9g P[nOYs apIng s pIeD
guiseyoInd a3 10d suoTOULS YL ‘QUIPLRID
oyt wim  Adwoo 01 S[rel  I9PIOypIed
o AIBYAN OPIND IOS() PIe) SUISBYIIMN ]
A1 UL PAILIS SB S1907s S0[ A[iep SUISLUOYNE
I0] ourpeap Arp ¢ Yl SUIDIOIUR

pajwawdduy Apaed 11/€0/1¢€ z IOpISUOD  PNOYs  $A0In0say  21erodio) W T
SAAVD LIATID /ASVHIUNG ALVIAOIYOD A0 TSN |
SADYNOSTY ALVIOJHOD |
| uopeymsmaduy

B maﬁwwwuwwcum

rusuo | Mwog |

TONBPUNUTHOINY

Py

[1/0T0Z SUONEpUIWWoddy SuipuelsinQ - 3oday $S2I30.1J pPaILId(d

V XIANAddYV Z1/1107 LHOdTY L1ANV ATYALIVAO - LIANY TVNIILINI ALLIOTHA



G1adeq

Z1/1107 Woday 7 10uend) — upny [ewraiu] AoSuurey jo ysnolog uopuoy

Page 65

[T0 42q0120) [ € -aulpna] pasiaay

(Sunoe
I30LJQ SSAUISNY JUSWDINO0LJ) JSOUJ( JUOUWDFBURIA JUIWNIO(]
puB UOTBULIOJU[/IOOUJ() OUBUL] S[qRARJ SIUNOODY :IOUM()

"SPI0JAI [EIOUBUY JO UOLUSIAI AU} J0J 90ULPING PIBPURIS YIIm
20UBPIOOOE UL ‘SIBIK XIS IoJe JO Pasodsip oq [[IM SJUSWNOO(]

2INIONAS

Suny 1oded pue ouluo we Ul ‘A[[ENUSD PPY PUBR PAUUBDS
aIe Aay) 219UM ‘1D 03 JUSS oI $109Ys Fo[ A[Iep pue sjuswoIe)g
‘11/01/11 21epd) 1uoweSeuey

(48]

JO pasodsIp aq pinoys jety sjuswnoop
yons AJuuepr o) siseq Aok ® uo 1sea)
Je USYELIOPUN 3G PINOYS SOILIONSIN(] Ul
P[Y UOURIUSTINOOP JO 9F. OU} JO MOIADL Y

"A1[04 UONULINY TUAUIMO0(] 1eiodion) 2li]
I 90UBPIOIOE Ul UOHRIUSWUNOOP UIR}DI
01 Lypiqisuodsar rrat o sfeuriy soueury

o1

pajuswdduwy Apaeg

smyeI§/ssoaSoag

uoneIuAW

[[e puUIWal pnoys sooInosay a1erodion)

P

|

V XIANJddV CI/TI0T LYOd T LIAAV ATIALAVNO - LIANV TYNSAINT TLLIOTAC



91 ofeq Z1/110Z Wodoy 7 1o1reng) — 1pny [euIdiu] A35uLiey jo ysnoiog uopuo’j

% J10C 42quiada(] [ § ‘aul]ppap pasiady

e {

(@) "sfunest wWnio] A19Jes Pue YI[BaH 9381010211 18 paiojuout sonsst Atre ssarppe

DQ.:M 29 M ssoiford pue 91eI00AINT YOBD UL SIOLJO FNEMAN 01 vonoe owudoxdde Surye; puw ceptodos
¥ WIEAH 21 01 PapEasey Head S Ao S HRASMOH IUNOD) IIOY) PANTWIqns 10U 9ARY IRY1 S21BI0AII(]
AU} SSOIOR SIUIBIISUOD 9DINOSAT JUALIND O] 2np $9)LI1010211(] uo dn SUIMO[[0] @pn[OUl Pnoys ssa001d
[ 10] UOTEPUSLIUIONDT ST} JuQwddl 01 JNOLJIp Uddq SEY 3 o], 'suoday 20IAIG 211030211 A10JES 29

|
‘ MEeY Apeuend) IRy Quiprap payoads |
B UMM TGRS 01 QIRIOIOI(] Yowe I10] y

payuwowpdury Apaed 01Tl 1€ 1 soed ur nd oq prnoys ssavoid [ewiio} V| €

:[ 10z 2unp awpdp) JuddSVUDJY

|
N ALAIVS ¥ HLTVHH

m.\ﬁubuwxm MMHEU

urjpea(
:oaﬁnoaoaﬁd

smye1g /55918014 | | 1euidliQ fyrourg | UOTIEPUIITHCIIY Py

V XIONAddV Z1/1107 LIOdTY LIANV ATHALIVAO - LIV TVNIALNI ALLIOTAC



Page 67

L198eq

Z1/110T 1oday 7 1ueng) — Jipny [euIaiuj Aafurrey] jo ySnolog uopuor

Buzaau
221JIMUIO))  2IN40dA0)) IXaU Yl 1D paliodal aq [jIM SnIpIS
Y1 pun 42qoidQ) Ui dn pamojjof aq [jimM UONDPUIWUIOIAL STY ]

JUDUUI0D JIPAY [DUADIUT

[10C 42quia1dog ()¢ -auijppap pasiay
"POpULWIE Uq
SBY UOIBPUSULUOIAI SIY) 10J QUIPEIp Ay} SULmonnsal 03 angg

:T10Z aunyp amwpdr) 1uawaSPUnpy

"91801J 11190 paroidde
Yl M 20uepIoodR ul st juatudopadp
Auwe  jeyy  uwuguoo o} dn Pamo[[o}
pue paloyuow 9q pnoys suoneordde
yons [re ‘uonesrjdde 91eoynio0 pasodoid
v JO [eaoxdde Ioye syuowr XIs ‘Ioyng

"Wea ], JUSUIA0IOJUH A} 0] OpBlU
[BLI9JR1 B IO POPIWIGNS-A1 IOU}O UG 9ARY
suoneorrdde 1oyoym AJnuepr 0 pamarsal
3q pinoys jueordde oy Aq uode; uonoe
Y3 pue parojuowr aq pnoys suonesrdde
gons e ‘uonedrdde o1eoynIed Sunsixo

payuswdfduy Apaeg dleIpaUI] ug Jo uomdofor oy Ioyr syuow XIg | €
Butjoou
pontmol) appiodio)) jxau 2y v paiodat g )M SHIDIS
Y] pup 42qoid() Ul dn pamopjof aq jjim UOUDPUIUIULI0IdL STY ]
TUDUWIWOD JIPNE [DUADIUT
[ 10T 42quia1das ()€ *2uljppap pasiaay
"POpUSIE Udq "218IN00® pue 9397duios
SBl UOHEPUIWIUIOAI STY} I0] SUIPBIP o) SULINIONIISII 0] an(] st ssoooxd  peordn oyl jeyl  wuguoo
TT0z 2unp awpd)) 1usmaSoungy 0] 1921530 Ewﬁﬁo@m@ﬁ ue Aq pomarAal aq
PInOYs Sl ‘qom 2} OIUO UOIBIUSUNOOP
paywdwdduy Apaeg SreIpawI] JuBASRI  JOo  Julpeol oyl Sumorog | 4

SSANTAAMYT IO SALVOIILLIAD

(Yrmqeureisng 2 998d MON) INTINNOYIANT NVIIN

o mmw&ww \mmuwwchm

oulpEaq

© uopEpUIMINOY

Py

V XIANHddV

CI/TI0T THOdTY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANY TYNIALNI ALLIOTAJ




31 o%eq Z1/110Z Hoday] 7 Jorend) — 1pny ey ASSULel JO Y3no1og Lopuo]

POIWIY NSIRWYO |, 2YoN0J 93II0[3(Y JO IqUWaly

“SULIYY JOQUISW S11 PUe T L JO 2injonns [e32] 3y} JO uondirosap payrelap e I0J In0ge/n°00'anIofap mmm
225 oseald senmnue juepuadopul pue ojeredos AqeSo] olv SULY IAQUIAW 9SOUm ‘odtueIend Aq pejrul Auedwoo aeaud s e (TLIC,) PRuWIry
NSIBUIO I YONO] ANIO[R(] JO WL IJaquidt WopFury pawrun) oy ‘g7 MIopRd Jo AIRIpISqNS B ST POLWIT UPNY [BWISIU] 10109§ Olqnd 2YoN0] % S1or2(]

-79168SH ON S[eA\ Pue pue[Sus ut pa1oisi3ay "wopSursy pavuf) YL¢ VHOHF UOPUOT 1991 MIN S[IIT [ “2SNOH [ITH 22130 parasISay
PN JPNY [BUWIAIU] 0109 I[N SYONO T, 29 S1I0[3( 0F $OUAIATAI 2I¢ ATO[A(] 01 $AIUIITI TUIAWNI0P ST} U]

1107 190120
uopueTy

PITWIT PNY [ZWINUT 10199Q TN 9YINO], 79 130

*pIEog SPIEPUEIS SOURINSSY PUE PNy [BUONRUISN] 313 Aq pensst (00¢€ VST SIUSWRTETU 00URINSSY UC pIBpuelg
[euonEwIAN] 2 YIM d[qeredwod 10U st 170da1 JIpUE [BUINUI JNO Ul PIPIEME [9AS] Q0UBIMSSE I “wa1sAs [ONUOY TRUIAIUT 2[qRI[2I B JO 20URUANUIEW o

Page 68

107 quepoduur st juawWRSeur AQ SUONEPUSWIOIAI INO JO voneuswadur A[2WIr PUB 9ANOYH SIUAWNIOP S JO ANDNUDYINE Y1 3INSUS 01 PUw YI0M J1pne
1mo yo sesodmd o1 107 SUONOBSUED PUB SPIOOAL Sununoooe 113y} 0} $SA00E [[1J sn 9p1ao1d 01 JusweFeurW U0 K121 oM YONS SB PUR IOUBDIUSIS PUB JSLI 1$MB0IT
Jjo Sureq se Juswofreurtu Aq PAINUSPT SB SPAIL UO SNO0J O pauSIsop oI somMpad0Ild JIpne [PUIU] PNEX 9AISN[I0D jsureSe jooid oq j0u ABW PUB 2DURINSSE
2IM[0sqe 10U pue 2[qeuosear ap1acid A[UO UBd [ONUOD [ewIAur JO SW2ISAS PUNOS UaAT “SenuEe[nSaLI 10 preyy Jo Anqiqissod oyl 03 SpieSar aaey 0} parmbar
are SpTom Ay Sunonpuod Ut ‘sIonpny  ANLE[nSall 10 PrEly JO SIDUEISWNOILD (I8 Ayguapr 01 uodn parjar 10U ‘SJONUOD [RILIAUT UT SASSIUNROM PUE SUISULNS
112 Ajriuapt o1 wodn par[a1 2q 10U PINOYS Ipne [euraut Aq poruzograd SjIom pue JUSWASEUR I SIS SANLLINSALIT 1910 PUE PRy JO UONIAIIP pue uonuarald
oY1 pUR S[ONUOD [BLLIAIUI JO WAISAS PUNOS B I0} Anpiqisuodsar ayy jer astseydwa 9p  's2010rId JUSTUATEUEWT PUNOS JO uwoneordde oty 101 semrqisuodsal
5, JuewoSRURW 10J JININSQNS B SB UaYE) 2q 10U P[NOYS PUB 10U ST HIOM JIPNE [EUIIE JO oourwroyrad oyl -perveurerduul aIe A9t 21050q 1ordwit [0y 119U} 103 NOA
£q passasse 2q PINOYS STUAWAA0IAWT IO} SUOTIEPUIWIOINY "opewl 2q WSt 1yl siuawaAoIdwl 1B 10 I1STXA BT} SISSAM{BAM 21} [[B JO 1aWeIs aajsuayeIdwod
© A[UIESS203U 10U 2IE PUB MIOM PNE [BUISUL INO JO 3SIN0D 21 SuLNp UONUANE INO 0} AWED YOTYM 2s0Ul A0 e 10dal ST UL PASTEL SIAJE Y[

“A0[2q 1O 125 sUONBIIWI] o1} JO siseq ay) wo paredad st goryam 110dax STyl 103 ANTIQIsuCdsar ael 9

Amqisuodsay 1o 1wamaIv1§

V XIANHddY Z1/T107 2904 L1dNV ATIALIVAO - LIANY TYNYAINI HLLIOTIA



Page 69

2 jo | ebey

Buuesy Areundiosig

JO asnsiw pabayy

v/N

pnelj Aourusy
Jo uonebejy

Buruep

swAoidwe
puooes
8.1ej08p 0}
pajie) esAo|dwe
1By} uonebe)y

jeaddy
18 pjoydn [essjwsiq

passIwsI(

LL/010¢C 4/9

BLIODUI
Bupied jo
1Jay1 Jo uonebs|y

B

paubisay

LL/OL0C 4/9

1unoooe
Buiseyoind
Jo asnsiw

jo uonebe|y

SEGIIVETS
S, UaIpiiyo

PoSSIWSI(]

LL/01L0¢ 4/9

Buisseaurs
Jeinbauy
10 uolebe|y

aAIINOB9X]
1o1yD JueISISSY

V/N

0

0

pneJ} Auspl
J0 uopebeyly

EERITNETS
Buisnoy

pue synpy |

{

(umouy })
(3) enjep

awoonQ Aseunidiosiq

uonebisaul
Areundiosiqg

01 109lgns
SJ921JO JO "ON

1 10¢/60/0¢€
1B usnoud

S9SBD JO "ON

pajebisanul
S8SED JO "ON

adA ) AlueinBauy

w
|
81eI010041q |

d XIAN3ddY

L1/010¢ WOY4 4/9 % 21/€0/0€ - L1/¥0/10 AILVYOILSIANI SAILIHYINDIYHY] — 11dNY 3SNOH NI



Page 70

2 J0 7 ebed

vi

WIi0oL

paubisey

aLW0oU| S8ull JO
yau1 jo uoliebe|y

V/N

awndsusip
o1ul [IoUNOD
sy1 buibuug
jo uopebay

passiwsi(

2ARS| INOULM
wesqae eako|dwe
reu; uonebe|y

Aujigeureisng
pue aoe|d

V/N

juswAoIdw
puooes
jo uonebaly

S924IN0S8Y
a1i0dIcD

H

Buiusepp

o1ndalsip
o1l 1oUNoN
ay1 Buibuuq
10 uopebe|y

V/N

sleuseWw
10 Yoy pabely

Buipusd

abpeg
uoluedwo)

(umoun 41)
(3) anrep

awoo1nO Aeudiosiq

uonebiisenul
Areundiosig

031 109lgns
S192140 4O ON

110¢/60/0¢€
1e usnoud

S9SBO JO "ON

paiebiseaul
sS9seD JO "ON

adA] Aueinbauy

21210108110

d XIAN3ddVY

11/0102 WOH4 4/9 ® 21/€0/0€ - L 1/#0/10 GALVYDILSIANI SALLIHVINDIHYI — LIANV ISNOH Ni



Page 71

Appendix C
Haringey Council — Corporate Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis July to September 2011

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period 01 July 2011 —~ 30 September
2011. ,

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who
e hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts
Note that this data excludes:

e Casual or Sessional Workers

e Schools
e Agency Workers

Legend
Aduns é( ngsmg B 2 As e
‘The Chidren & Young People’s Service | G
CmefExecunve A R S CE o
Corpora{e Resoume 3 e CR M
Put;thevalthu SIS S pH ;
p;aCé &SUS tamab,my USSR SO Ps
Harm ge;/ Coun C”w SO I HGY i

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

» Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour

s Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently

» Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

» Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance

» Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

» Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public

= Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council
(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)



Page 72

Appendix C
Disciplinary Cases

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary
procedure.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate

Diféétorate | Cases O‘pen | Ca'syéé Clbéed ”'No of Casésw | "No “b'f efhblbyeeé
o . 1 , ; 1;. : 1

on ) 5 5 e

PH 0 0 0 | 0

Grand Total 21 18 39 a7

Please note that the total number of cases is 39, but this only represents 37 employees. The reason
being is that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently. For example, an
employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

« Children’s has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases against its workforce at 1.59% in
this quarter

e 21 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases

Stage

 CasesOpen  CasesClosed Total %
Invest. - not susrpehded " 1 4 - 15 ' g
Invest. - suspended e 7 7 "1 18 46
ET 2 | 0 > s
Appeal 1 3 4 10
T ofb



Page 73

Appendix C
The following table identifies the outcomes of the 18 cases that were closed in this period.

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

I et est st |
: : ) t T T 9
Outcome not suspended | appeal | ET - Total : %

- suspended | ©

Compromise agreement 0 0 0 o0

Dis. Appeal Dlsmlssed 0
: DIS Appeal Part Upheld 0 o
, DIS Appeal Wlthdrawn .

S. Appeal Upheld

0

Dis. Dlsmlssal ‘ 1

Dis. ET Dlsmlssed N ” 0
1
1

l

Dis ET Wlthdrawn 0
Dkis Fmal Wntten Warnmg

0o/jo 000 o o o w

O 0o o000 o0 o.oio

Dis.Other
DIS Relegatﬁ:on/Demopom oo - ) o

DIS Res;gned '

ciloiolo

¢
!
¢
)
y
§
i

lololo o

D|s ertten Wamlng

i
§
}
i
1
i
!
|
t
i

Escalated to next stage

fSuspens' nLlfted o M

BIvlol~ o 20l nvw oo wo oo w o

i

i

i

{

i

1

i

t
lwoloio!

I

I
i ?
‘oo o

H
H
¢
i
i

This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.

Reasons for Disciplinary Cases
Rea Son o o Cases Open Cases Closed . : Total o
:Assault o : 1 { ! :

o

SN
%
18

Attendanoe
Behav;our

‘Fraud / Theft

Mlsuse of resources |

—
B

i Negllgence
Other |
Total 21

21

W b ain o N
o:b—?o:cofooAcoﬁoi
- N

—
[o¢]
[O¥]
o

100

= The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour at 36%

3ofb



This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

Page 74

Disciplinary Case employee representation

" Ethnic Class

BAME

| Whlte
Not Declared
Total

- Total %
T
2 13 |
A
SRRT A .0

by Ethnicity and Gender
Male

Total %
13 14 88

Female

49 19 5

All

Total
-2

;37v

16
0

%‘
57

43

0

100

Appendix C

329% of the workforce is male, but the male representation with disciplinary cases is significantly

higher at 51%

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands.

Dir

- AS

CE
CR
i PH
| PS

HG

Disciplinary Case employee representation by

Ethnicity and Grade Band

(T = Total no. in grade band, WF = % of total disciplined employees in Dxrectorate)

P08+'

Ethnic
Group

i se1ee5§

'i Whlte
Total

Ethte

Total

WEB&ME‘

White
Total

E‘Vthte
Total
B&ME
White
~Total
B&ME
- White
Total
B & ME
Y White

Total

41

‘scesozé

N~ W ANNMOOOON—= 4000 NON = O —Li

PO1P03§

WE T W T

J U S
z 1 ’

f50g

|
25
50

i

"o
11
11

o O O O O O O o

o0
w O

(@} S O O O O O © O o000 —-*-*O-DO'&-OOO—{
— . ; : ' i {

= ool o Hhio o :
O H RN - s 00 C = 200 00, Nw o o O

19

WF

PO4P07§

MV O NN O OO0 OO 0000000 000 O;'—i

%ﬁé
-nf

OO0 OO0 00000 0000 00 O

— b
o o=

5

lwlio N = -u;—-i

© © 0O 0 o A NN = = O

—
o]

- TOTAL

CWF
1
50
100

"}m

ke
[\
. i

15
s
50
o
o

50
50

E100@

57
43
100

— 1O
[0) JE=Y

37



Page 75

Appendix C
Suspensions

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases
; L Total
0

- No. of cases not concluded 7

Case status |

- No. of cases h'eékd

 No. of cases not concluded: leaver 1T
Total 18

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

The table below looks at the 18 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If a case has not concluded by the end of the quarter, the number of working days is calculated
from the start date of the suspension to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension for all cases, the
maximum days for a single case and the number of cases heard within that period.

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases
Total  Total | daysof = Max. | Jg:;
cases | days total Days :

heard

Directorate 1-60 |

P PSS YU ST, S S SRS S

AS

C

PH

PS 185 5

2

3

0 ;

2
jHGYV -9
Total cases
- closed

(o) N o> BN o NN a»)
(o]
—
L0 o o o
©
[0}
(@]
~\j
(do]
(@]

i 2 0 18 1447 80 206 10

On average, 80 days were spent on each suspension case within the quarter.

50f6



Page 76
Appendix C

The chart below illustrates the average and maximum number of days taken for a suspension case by
Directorate for the quarter.

Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by
Directorate

450 | —
400 |

350
300 |
250
200 |
150 | i iy v
TIRE P

50

"Avg. days % Max. days

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter for a rolling year and highlights
Haringey Council’s average number of days per case.

No. of cases and average days taken per case
by quarter

200
160

120 95 88 96

80

80

40

Q3 - Oct-Dec10 Q4 - Jan-Mar11 Q1 - Apr-Juni1 Q2 - Jul-Sep11

~ Total Number of Cases . Averagé Days per Case

The average number of days suspended for the last quarter was 80, this is the lowest it has been
compared to the last 3 quarters.

5 of b



Page 77 Agenda Item 8

Haringey Council

Report for: Corporate Committee ::[li];nnber:

Title: Employment Terms & Conditions

Report gl L](\ PC'\

Authorised by: ' ‘

Lead Officer: Stuart Young

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

1. Describe the issue under consideration
Over recent months officers have been in discussion with staff, Members and trade
unions about the potential to review employment terms. This formed part of the
budget process. This report updates Members on progress.

2. Recommendations
Members are asked to note the report, and to receive further report as necessary
on the review of existing employment procedures.

3. Background information
During the Spring and Summer of 2011 a package of potential changes to
employment terms was developed. This was the subject of discussion with staff
and unions.

Detailed proposals were shared with staff in June 2011 and surveys undertaken to
assess various pats of the package. Discussions were held within Directorate
teams and a process of feedback established so that HR could consider the views
of staff.

Page 1 of2



Page 78

Haringey Courncil
At the same time, equality impact assessments were carried out on the various
elements of the package to assess risk. From these analyses officers and unions
were able to identify those aspects that would not be discussed further because of
their potential for adverse impact.

It became clear during the Summer that the proposals were unpopular with staff. it
was also clear that the scope for reaching agreement with unions was limited to
local employment terms.

Uttimately it was the view of officers and leading Members that the project should
be refocused to concentrate on the application of local employment processes. As
such it is proposed to continue to discuss with the unions the following:
Application of car allowance criteria

Application of voluntary overtime arrangements

Flexi time and TOIL (time off in lieu)

Employment procedures

Organisational change procedures including redundancy

Proposed changes arising from these discussions will be the subject of
consideration by the committee as appropriate.

4. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications
Any savings accruing from the proposals in this report will be realised in the
service budgets of Directorates. it is not possible to quantify potential savings until
further discussions have been held.

3. Head of Legal Services and legal implications
There are no legal implications arising from this report, as no changes to
employment terms are proposed.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Page 2 of 2



Page 79 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Council

. . ltem
Report for: Corporate Committee Number-
—
Title: Shared Services
Report <F <
LAuthonsed by: \j;j‘ ></\ '
Lead Officer: Stuart Young
Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

1. Describe the issue under consideration
Haringey and Waltham Forest Councils entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding in November 2010. The agreement was that we would treat each
other as preferred partners in any consideration of shared service operations. This
report provides an update on progress for the Committee to note, with particular
emphasis on the staffing elements of service delivery.

2. Recommendations
Members are asked to note the report

3. Background information
Shared service projects are planned in a number of phases. Phase one projects
have progressed as follows:
« HR - payroll processes developed and due to go live mid-November 2011
» OD - joint head appointed and training provision planned to align
» Economic Development — joint head appointed, reorganisation planned to
complete December 2011.
+ Planning & Building control - Haringey manager seconded to WF to review
business processes. Decision on sharing potential due 31/10/11.
- Regulatory Services - areas for potential sharing discussed between lead
Cabinet members of each Council. Plans for consultation and

Page 1 of 2



Page 80

Haringey Coninci

recommendation to Cabinet, Corporate committee to be brought forward in
December. :

. Contact Centre - this is a broad and cross cutting project which requires
both Council’s to revisit how services are provided to residents. A piece of
work to scope the project is due for completion on 31/10/11.

. SAP - both boroughs are due to re-procure the providers for their finance,
procurement and HR IT systems.

Some of the areas above are hared procurement/commissioning exercises. Others
will involve staffing reorganisations. An example is the Economic Regeneration
reorganisation previously considered by the Committee. Each will follow the
standard restructuring process.

An employment protocol has been prepared by the boroughs to inform the various
staffing matters that arise when services are run together. This is scheduled to be
presented to your next meeting.

4. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications
There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5. Head of Legal Services and legal implications

There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Page 2 of 2



Page 81 Agenda ltem 10

Agenda item:

[No.]

Corporate Committee On 24 October 2011

Report Title. London Living Wage — Policy and Hourly Pay Rate Supplements

Report of Stuart Young, Assistant Chief Executive

Signed :

Contact Officer : Steve Davies, Head of Human Resources

Wards(s) affected: [All / Some (Specify)] | Report for: [Key / Non-Key Decision]

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. The purpose of this report is to approve the implementation of hourly pay rate
supplements to the pay scales of council employees at lower end of the London
pay spine to increase the hourly rate of pay to the level of the London Living
Wage (LLW) rate as determined by the Mayor of London’s office.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. Not applicable

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:
3.1. Council commitment to pay it's employees the London Living Wage pay rate.




Page 82

4. Recommendations

4.1.That this committee agree the implementation of local hourly pay supplements for
council employees at the lower end of the London pay spine to increase the
hourly rate of pay to the level of the London Living Wage rate as determined by
the Greater London Authority.

4.2.That this committee agree the increase to the pay rates of agency workers to
ensure that no one is paid less than the London Living Wage as determined by
the Greater London Authority.

4.3. That this committee agree the above additional pay supplements/ increases with
effect from 2 May 2011.

4.4. That this committee delegate to the Head of Human Resources authority to
increase and/or introduce hourly pay supplements as appropriate to ensure that in
future the pay of council employees at the lower ends of the London pay spine
receive a level of pay in line with the London Living Wage rate as determined from
time to time by the Greater London Authority.

4.5. That this committee delegates to the Head of Human Resources authority to
increase the pay and charge rates of agency workers to ensure that they are paid
no less than the London Living Wage rate as determined from time to time by the
Greater London Authority.

4.6. That this committee agrees the principle of adopting the Greater London Authority
London Living Wage rate to be applied as the minimum pay level for staff
providing services to the council under procurement contract arrangements.

5. Reason for recommendation(s)
5.1.To ensure that the hourly rate of pay of council employees at the lower end of the
London pay spine remain at a reasonable and fair level of pay for working in
London as determined by the Living Wage Unit on behalf of the Mayor of London
for the Greater London Authority group.

6. Other options considered
6.1. The alternative would be to not pay a supplement rate of pay, which according to
the research of the London Living Wage unit would place a number of lower paid
council employees and any children they might have at a significant disadvantage
in terms of the quality of life they can enjoy.




Page 83

7. Summary
7.1.Background

7.1.1

Until the May 2010 increase in the London Living Wage (LLW), all the pay
points on the GLPC pay spines were above the LLW. The lack of increase in
the pay spines for 2010/11 meant that spine point 4 in outer London dropped
below by 2p an hour. In Haringey council no staff were on spine point 4,
although there are a small number of cleaners in schools on spine point 4.

7.1.2 The LLW May 2011 increase to £8.30 an hour, combined with the lack of any
increase in the pay spines for 2011/12 means that employees on spine points
4-7 (outer London) would have been below the LLW rate.
7.1.3 The current gap between pay spine points and the LLW is summarised below.
Outer London Spine Pt | Hourly rate (£) | LLW hourly rate gap
SCP 4 7.83 47p
SCP 5 7.89 41p
SCP 6 7.96 34p
SCP 7 8.11 19p

7.2 Council workers

7.21

In Haringey the adoption of low pay supplements for staff below the LLW rate

will have the following impact:

e In the council approx 100 part time cleaners will see their gross pay increase
by approx £160 per year. A total cost to the council’s revenue budget of
approx £16,000 per annum.

¢ In schools approx 200 part time cleaners and schools meals assistants will
see their gross pay increase by approx £180 per year. A total cost to the
schools dedicated schools grant (DSG) of approx £36,600 per annum.

7.2.2 There are also approx 100 part time kitchen, cleaning and gardener agency

7.2.3

workers who would be affected by the adoption of a policy to not pay less than
LLW rate. Assuming this level of agency workers were retained for a full year
the additional cost would be approx £9,400 per annum.

In terms of external contracts we have adopted a strategy of including a clause
in the contract conditions of ALL our construction related Framework
Agreements (major works, minor works and conservation works) to not pay
less than the London Living Wage. The practice of contractors supplying
Highways and Waste Management services has also been to pay above the
LLW rate. However, it is our view that because the LLW is a regional standard
(ie London only) and not a national requirement, such as the UK Minimum
Wage, then it cannot be legally enforced through a procurement / contract
process.




Page 84

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1. The financial impact of the recommendations is clearly set out in section 7 above
and the expectation is that these costs should be absorbed within existing budget
provisions across the services affected.

8.2.1t is recommended that as part of the delegated responsibility for increasing
and/or introducing hourly pay rate supplements to the Head of Human Resources,
he/she ensures early discussion is held with corporate finance to enable the on-
going financial impact of such decisions to be factored into the Council’s budget
planning.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report.
S112 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that the Council may appoint
staff on such reasonable terms and conditions of employment as the authority
might determine. Having regard to the London Living Wage, as promoted by the
Mayor of London’s Office, in determining the rates of pay of the lowest paid
employees within the authority is a reasonable consideration. The application of
the London Living Wage to the rates paid to low earning agency staff is also a
reasonable course of action in the light of the Council’s aims and strategies
concerning poverty and economic well being.

10. Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments

10.1. The proposals are designed to ensure a reasonable quality of living for low paid
staff and their dependants living in London. This helps support the councils
aims for tackling low income and poverty in the borough.

11. Service Financial Comments
11.1. Approx 100 part time cleaners will see their gross pay increase by approx £160
per year. A total cost to the council’s revenue budget of approx £16,000 per
annum with an expected increase within this financial year of £14,200. This will
be contained with service budgets.

11.2. In addition there are also approx 100 part time kitchen, cleaning and gardener
agency workers. Assuming this level of agency workers were retained for a full
year the additional cost would be approx £9,400 per annum and approx £7,800
within this financial year.

11.3. The total additional cost to revenue budgets is approx £25,000 per annum.
These costs will be contained within service budgets.




Page 85

11.4. In terms of costs within schools the additional costs are estimated to be approx
£36,000 per annum and approx £33,000 this financial year. These costs will be
contained within the DSG.

12. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
12.1. There are no appendices.

13.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

13.1. No documents that require to be listed were used in the preparation of this
report.




Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87 Agenda ltem 11

Haringey i

Report for: Corporate Committee

Appointment to AD Finance and Head of Legal Services

Report
Authorised by:

Lead Officer:

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

1.

Describe the issue under consideration
This report Proposes a process for the appointment to two posts: Assistant
Director of Finance and Head of Legal Services,

. Recommendations

Members are asked to agree the recruitment process for each of the two posts.

Background information
Two posts have been vacant and covered by staff acting up to cover the
responsibilities of the posts; Legal since April 2011 and Finance since July 2010.

It is proposed to apply the same approach to the two vacant posts —that is to
include them on the internal jobs vacancy list and therefore invite applications from
current Council staff. A longlist of applicants would be drawn up and a Member

Page 1 of'2



Page 88

e

P

Haringey (o
appointment process would then follow in the usual way. Should the internal advert
prove unsuccessful in attracting applicants or should an appointment not be
possible, an external recruitment exercise would then be undertaken - again as a
standard Member appointment.

In reaching the decision to proceed on the basis proposed, Members are asked to
weigh the costs of external recruitment with the restrictions that an internal
recruitment might bring. Typical recruitment costs for a senior post are in the order
of £25K per job. The process takes approximately 4-6 months to realise a new
appointee, dependent on notice periods. Both jobs are likely to attract applications
from within the Council, even if advertised externally. So there is a logic to a two-
staged process where Members assess interest from within the Council first, and
then if this proves insufficient to enable an appointment to proceed, then test the
external market.

Members are asked also to take into account that the Council is under represented
in its representation from BME communities amongst the top tiers. Any
appointment made will be based on the merit and will be open to any employee of
the Council to apply.

It is suggested that Members consider each job on its merits, simply because there
may be occasions in the future when Member wish to externally advertise.

4. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications
There are no financial implications arising from the proposals in this report. Both
posts are currently funded.

5. Head of Legal Services and legal implications
There are no legal implications arising from this report. The Council is required to
make appointment on merit and in accordance with part 4 section K4 of the
Constitution. The proposals in this report accord with the Council Constitution.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Page 2 ot'2



Page 89 Agenda Iltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Corporate Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report - 2011/12 Quarter 2
	8 Update on Terms and Conditions
	9 Shared Services Preferred Partnership with London Borough of Waltham Forest - Update Report
	10 London Living Wage - Policy and Hourly Pay Rate Supplements
	11 Appointment of Head of Legal Services and Lead Financial  Officer
	14 Leisure Management Contract - Pension Funding Issue

